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Definitions

For the purposes of this Annual Report, the following legislation contained herein shall have the
meaning provided below:

AMISTA investiéni spolegnost, a.s., Company ID No. (ICO): 274 37 558,

AMISTA IS registered office: Pobfezni 620/3, Prague 8, 186 00

CNB ‘ Czech National Bank

Agreement between the United States of America and the Czech Republic
to Improve International Tax Compliance and with Respect to the United
FATCA Agreement States Information and Reporting Provisions Commonly Known as the
Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, published under No. 72/2014 Coll. of
Int. Agreements

European Investment Bank, registered office: 98-100 boulevard Konrad
Adenauer, L-2950 Luxembourg

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., Company ID No. (IC0): 02059533, registered
office: Pod kfizkem 1773/2, 147 00 Prague 4, registered in the Commercial
Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Entry No.
19323

Valuation Date Last day of the Accounting Period

Sub-fund Inven Capital — Subfund B

Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council
SFDR of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial
services sector

Accounting Period /

Reporting Period Period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

Decree No. 234/2009 Coll., on the Protection against Market Abuse and on

Decree
Transparency, as amended

Act No. 93/2009 Coll., on Auditors and on amendments to certain acts (Act

(AL T on Auditors), as amended

Income Taxes Act \ Act No. 586/1992 Coll., on Income Taxes, as amended

Act on Accounting \ Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, as amended

Act No. 240/2013 Coll., on Investment Companies and Investment Funds,

Lol as amended

Act No. 164/2013 Coll., on International Cooperation in Tax Administration

e and on amendments to other related acts, as amended

Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on Business Corporations and Cooperatives

SEA (Business Corporations Act), as amended

ACMU \ Act No. 256/2004 Coll., on Capital Market Undertakings, as amended




Declaration of honor of the persons
responsible for the Annual Report

To the best of our knowledge, having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case,
the Annual Report gives a true and fair view of the financial position, business and results
of operations for the year 2022, prospects for future development, business activities and results
of operations, and does not conceal any facts that could change the purpose and meaning of this
Report

Prague, 14 April 2023

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
Ing. lvo Némejc Ing. Viktor MiSkovsky
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Business activities, state of assets and
ownership interests

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., Company ID No. (1IC0): 02059533,
registered office: Pod kfizkem 1773/2, 147 00 Prague 4, registered
in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court
in Prague under File No. B 19323

Inven Capital — Subfund B

Period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

1. Sub-fund’s activities in the Accounting Period

Inven Capital - Subfund B focuses on investments in growth-stage cleantech startups from the
European Union, with scalable business models proven by sales and a strong growth potential.
The Sub-fund is interested in sectors such as energy efficiency, distributed power generation,
flexibility and energy storage, energy data services, clean transport, smart city, and activities with
the potential to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in general.

Subfund B has invested in eight companies (four German ones, one French, two Czech and one
Swedish) and has invested more than 90% of its investment framework. At the end of 2022, the
Subfund B portfolio includes the following companies:

tado GmbH — the company is developing a platform for smart household temperature control based
on the user’s location and habits.

Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH — designer, supplier and operator of highly energy- and cost-
efficient distributed data centers using the heat of water-cooled servers for heating and hot water

supply.

Cosmo Tech S.A.S. — supplier of a software platform for complex system modelling providing key
information to optimize decision-making in the management of critical infrastructure and processes.

Zolar GmbH - the company’s digital platform is applied in the installation of photovoltaic panels and
battery systems in family houses through external plumbing companies, which it consolidates within
its platform.

Eliq AB — the company’s software platform collects and analyzes data on customers’ consumption
and production of electricity from smart meters, combines the data with additional information on the
consumption of household appliances and provides its customers with an overview of their
consumption, including energy savings options, which reduces customer fluctuation and the cost of
servicing them and provides additional space for upselling.

Forto GmbH — European digital freight forwarder, which develops a platform working with real-time
data, optimizes transport, allows customers to order transport, track their shipments and handle all
online administration, including the choice of transport method with regard to emissions; focuses
mainly on relations between Asia and Europe.

Woltair s.r.o. — the company develops a digital platform that simplifies the selection, ordering and

installation of heating equipment, while connecting customers and technology through this platform.
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In 2022, additional investments were made in Cloud&Heat, CosmoTech, NeuronSW, Eliq, Woltair
and Zolar. No new investments can be made by the Subfund in the divestment period.

In September 2022, Inven sold its stake in the Czech company NeuronSW at a loss. The objective
of the sale was to minimize further losses and to create the potential for recovery of the invested
funds through the earnout mechanism in the sale agreement. NeuronSW is a technology company
that has developed a comprehensive Al solution for sound analysis to predict machine failures.

1.1.Sub-fund’s results

The annual financial statements for the Accounting Period including the notes to the financial
statements, together with the auditor’s report that constitutes an inseparable part of the Annual
Report, give a fair and comprehensive view of the Sub-fund’s financial performance.

The Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property perspective, a part separated from the assets and
liabilities of the Fund. The accounting records reflect the Sub-fund’s assets and liabilities and other
facts to allow for the preparation of a separate set of financial statements of the Sub-fund. This
Annual Report is also a separate annual report of the Sub-fund. The Sub-fund has no legal
personality; information concerning its bodies is therefore contained in the Fund’s Annual Report.

In 2022, the company recorded a loss of CZK 96,277 thousand. The loss was in particular due to the
creation of a provision for along-term bonus, operating costs incurred in the administration of
Subfund B in the implementation of investments and remeasurement of convertible loans.

1.2. State of assets

The value of the Sub-fund’s assets increased by 59.96% year-on-year (i.e. by CZK 762,868
thousand). The increase in assets was mainly due to ownership interests in companies (an increase
of CZK 724,342 thousand), which increased thanks to increased existing investments and the effect
of revaluation.

The Sub-fund’s portfolio is financed through own resources (89.42%), in particular capital funds; the
remaining percentage (10.58%) includes short-term liabilities in the form of other liabilities.

Assets

In the balance sheet as at 31 December 2022, the Sub-fund reported assets totaling CZK 2,035,133
thousand. These assets mainly consist of shares, unit certificates and other interests in Tado,
Cloud & Heat Technologies, CosmoTech, Zolar, Eliq, Forto a Woltair in the amount of CZK 1,943,452
thousand, other assets of CZK 91,492 thousand and due from banks in the amount of CZK 189
thousand. The fair value of ownership interests was determined on the basis of an valuation report
prepared by Deloitte as at 31 December 2022.



Liabilities

In the balance sheet as at 31 December 2022, the Company reported liabilities totaling CZK
2,035,133 thousand. These consisted of equity of CZK 1,819,875 thousand, other liabilities in the
amount of CZK 125,160 thousand, which represent mainly liabilities to shareholders of CZK 110,184
thousand and a deferred tax liability of CZK 14,101 thousand, and an established provision of CZK
90,098 thousand. The number of investment shares issued for Subfund B is 45,681. The loss for the

period was CZK 96,277 thousand.
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Cash flow
Net decrease in cash as at 31 December 2022 amounted to CZK (1,928) thousand.

The cash flow from operating activities at the end of the Reporting Period amounted to CZK (8,832)
thousand; as at 31 December 2021, it was CZK (37,519) thousand, which represents an increase of
CZK 28,688 thousand. The cash flow was affected by net cash from operating activities before
taxation, changes in working capital and extraordinary items in the amount of CZK 258 thousand.

The net cash flow related to investing activities amounted to CZK (203,577) thousand at the end of
the Accounting Period; at the end of the previous period it was CZK (137,501) thousand, its amount
was affected by the costs associated with the acquisition of fixed assets in the very amount of CZK
(203,577) thousand and income from the sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets of CZK 76
thousand.

The net cash flow related to financial activities at the end of the Accounting Period amounted to CZK
210,481 thousand. At the end of the previous period it was CZK 164,919 thousand; its amount was
affected by the impact of changes in equity on cash totaling CZK 210,481 thousand.

At the end of the period, cash and cash equivalents decreased by CZK 1,928 thousand compared to
the previous accounting period, which represented the very net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents; the item balance is CZK 189 thousand.

2. Projected development

As at 1 January 2022, Sub-fund B entered a five-year divestment period and therefore the key task
will be to work towards successful divestments of the Target Companies.

New investments will only be made from Sub-fund C, which began its five-year investment period on
1 January 2022, and from Sub-fund D which was established as at 1 January 2023.

The Fund’s management will continue to monitor developments in the international economic and
security situation in the context of the conflict in Ukraine. One of the impacts of the conflict has been
the acceleration of certain trends such as the transition to sustainable energy sources, self-
sufficiency and diversification. These areas experience increased demand for new solutions, and for
many Target Companies, they represent an opportunity for faster growth and increasing their value.
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Sub-fund Profile

1. Sub-fund description
Name: Inven Capital — Subfund B

Identification data
Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 706
Tax Identification No. (DIC): CZ684366252

Registered Office

Street: Pod kfizkem 1773/2
District: Branik

Post code: 147 00 Prague 4

Establishment of the Fund

On 1 September 2013, CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. (original name of the Fund prior to the granting
of a license), was formed as a non-regulated joint-stock company established by CEZ, a. s.,
Company ID No. (ICO): 45274649, with registered office located at Duhovéa 2/1444, Prague 4, post
code 140 53, registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague,
Section B, Entry No. 1581, as the sole founder and shareholder.

With effect from 4 September 2014, CEZ Nova energetika, a.s., was registered in the register
maintained by CNB pursuant to Section 596(f) of ICIFA.

With effect from 10 December 2015, the ownership of 4 shares issued by CEZ Nova energetika, a.s.,
was transferred to CEZ Teplarenska, a. s., Company ID No. (ICO): 273 09 941, with registered office
located at Riéany, Bezru€ova 2212/30, zip code 251 01, registered in the Commercial Register
maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Entry No. 17910.

The CNB’s decision to grant a license to conduct the activities of an autonomous investment fund
came into legal force on 31 August 2016 and the company changed its business name to Inven
Capital, investi¢ni fond, a.s. with effect from 1 September 2016. Pursuant to Section 8(1) of the Act,
the Fund is authorized to manage itself. The Fund is not authorized to perform its own administration.
The Fund has submitted to the application of the ICIFA upon the Fund’s own request.

With effect from 1 February 2018, the Fund as a joint-stock company was transformed into
a variable-capital joint-stock company (SICAV) pursuant to Section 367 of ICIFA; alongside the
change oflegal form, the company changed its name to Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Sub-fund

Inven Capital - Subfund B was created on 1 February 2018 by the decision of the Fund’s Board
of Directors and was registered in the register maintained by the CNB on 7 February 2018.
In accordance with Section 165(1) of the ICIFA, the Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property
perspective, a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Fund. The Fund has included in
the sub-funds the assets and liabilities arising from investment activities. All investment activities of

the Fund are carried out through the sub-funds.
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Each sub-fund has its own investment strategy and its own statute. The investment strategy is always
set out in the statute.

Shares

For each sub-fund, the Fund issues investment shares that represent equal shares in the fund capital
of the given sub-fund. The investment shares issued for a sub-fund have the following rights
attached: the right to a share in profit ensuing only from the performance of the given sub-fund and
the right to a share of the liquidation surplus ensuing only upon the dissolution of the sub-fund with
liquidation.

The shares are issued as no-par value (NPV) shares, i.e. shares with no nominal value listed on the
share. The investment shares of Subfund B are held by the European Investment Bank. As at
31 December 2022, 45,681 investment shares were issued for the Sub-fund. As at 31 December
2022, the fund capital amounted to CZK 1,819,875 thousand.

The currency of the investment shares of Subfund B is in EUR. The Company’s shares have been
issued as securities and have not been admitted to trading on a regulated market, i.e. they are not
listed on any regulated (or other European) market or admitted to trading in any multilateral trading
facility.

Net business assets: CZK 1,819,875 thousand

Bodies of the Sub-fund

Board of Directors

Chairman of the Board of Directors Ing. Petr Mikovec (since 27 February 2015)
Address: Na Kralovce 508/3, VrSovice, 101 00 Prague 10
Date of birth: 24 May 1974

Vice-Chairman of the Board Ing. Ivo Némejc (since 1 February 2017)
of Directors Address: Chrustenice no. 212, 267 12 Chrustenice
Date of birth: 5 May 1977

Member of the Board of Directors  Ing. Viktor Miskovsky (since 1 February 2017)
Address: Ceské druziny 1947/19, Dejvice, 160 00 Prague 6
Date of birth: 12 April 1968

The Board of Directors is the statutory body of the Fund, which is responsible for management of the
Fund and represents the Fund externally. The Board of Directors follows generally binding legal
regulations, the Articles of Association and the Statute of the Fund and its sub-funds, if established.
Among other things, the Board of Directors further convenes the General Meeting of the Fund and
approves amendments to the Statute of the Fund and its sub-funds, if established. The Board of
Directors is elected by the Fund’s General Meeting and has three members.

The fundamentals of the Fund’'s business management fall within the competence of the Fund.
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The members of the Board of Directors are authorized to perform their activities based on a CNB
decision to carry out investment company activity. An authorized representative of the Board of
Directors has the prior consent of CNB to perform its function.

Supervisory Board

Chairman of the Ing. Tomas Pleska¢, MBA (since 30 May 2016)
Supervisory Board Date of birth: 8 November 1966 (member since 1 February 2016)
Education: university degree

Vice-Chairman of the Ing. Martin Novak, MBA (since 16 March 2015)
Supervisory Board Date of birth: 2 May 1971 (member since 30 August 2014)
Education: university degree

Member of the Magr. Ing. Vojtéch Kopp (since 30 December 2014)
Supervisory Board Date of birth: 12 July 1981 (member since 30 August 2014)
Education: university degree

The Supervisory Board supervises the proper performance of the Fund’s activities, as well as carries
out other activities stipulated by generally binding legal regulations; it consists of three members
elected by the General Meeting.

2. Information on changes of facts recorded in the Commercial Register
that occurred in the Reporting Period

The Sub-fund constitutes a part of the assets and liabilities of the Fund, separated for accounting
and property purposes; the Sub-fund is without legal personality and is not registered in the
Commercial Register.

3. Information on the investment company managing the Sub-fund in the
Accounting Period

The Fund is an autonomous investment fund authorized to manage itself pursuant to the license
to perform the activities of an autonomous investment fund granted by the CNB. Pursuant to the
provision of Section 8(2) of the ICIFA, the Fund is the manager of the Fund. The manager of the
Fund, i.e. the Fund, is also the manager of the sub-funds created by the Fund.

In the Accounting Period, the manager carried out regular activities stipulated in and compliant
with the Fund’s statute and the Sub-fund’s statute.

Members of the Board of Directors act as portfolio managers.

Chairman of the Ing. Petr Mikovec (since 27 February 2015)
Board of Directors Date of birth: 24 May 1974 (member since 1 September 2013)
Education: university degree
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1998 — 2003  Patria Finance, a.s.: Online business division manager

2004 —2006 CEZ, a.s.: Analysis and forecasting specialist

2007 —2007 CEZ, a.s.: Strategy project manager

2007 -2008 CEZ, a.s.: Product evaluation department head

2008 —2010 CEZ, a.s.: Portfolio assessment division head

2010-2012 CEZ, a.s.: Portfolio assessment division manager

2010 -2014 CEZ, a.s.: Director of the business development division, CEZ Group

Vice-Chairman of the Ing. lvo Némejc (since 1 February 2017)
Board of Directors Date of birth: 5 May 1977
Education: university degree

1998 - 2001 NEWTON Holding, a.s.: Financial analyst

2001 -2005 NEWTON Management, a.s.: Project manager

2005-2006 BAWAG Bank CZ, a.s.: Corporate Finance team leader

2006 —2009 LBBW Bank CZ a.s.: Structured financing director

2010 -2014 LBBW Bank CZ a.s.: Director for large corporate clients and structured financing

Member of the Ing. Viktor MiSkovsky (since 1 February 2017)
Board of Directors Date of birth: 12 April 1968
Education: university degree

1995 — 2002 Arthur Andersen, a.s.: Senior Manager

2002 — 2005 Horizon Energy Development/United Energy: CFO in Horizon Energy Development
s.r.o., chairman of the Supervisory Board of United Energy a.s., member of the Board of Directors
of Teplarny Liberec, a.s.

2005 — 2007 Zapadoceska energetika, a. s.: CEO and chairman of the BoD

2008 — 2015 Wikov Wind, a. s.. CEO and member of the BoD

Major factors affecting the Sub-fund’s economic results

In 2022, the Sub-fund recorded aloss in connection with the operating costs incurred in the
administration of the Sub-fund investing in growth-stage cleantech startups in Europe with scalable
business models proven by sales and a strong growth potential, and recognition of a provision for
a long-term bonus.

4. Information on the investment Sub-fund’s Depositary

Business name: Ceska spotitelna, a.s.
Registered office: Olbrachtova 1929/62, 140 00 Prague 4
Company ID No. (ICO): 452 44 782

The performance of the activities of a depositary by Ceska spofitelna is governed by the Depositary
Agreement of 1 September 2020. Pursuant to the Agreement, the Depositary undertakes to act as a
depositary for the fund pursuant to Act No. 240/2013 Coll., on Investment Companies and Investment
Funds, and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 231/2013 supplementing Directive
2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council.
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5. Information on the prime broker

No persons authorized to provide investment services acted as the prime broker for the Sub-fund In
the Accounting Period. The Sub-fund did not have a prime broker.

6. Information on persons to whom the safekeeping or custody of the
Fund’s assets was delegated by the Depositary, if they safekeep or
otherwise hold in custody more than 1% of the Fund’s assets

The Depositary currently uses the services of Clearstream Banking S.A. Luxembourg for the
settlement and clearing of foreign securities and the services of the Central Securities Depositary
(Centralni depozitaf cennych papiri, a. s.) for the settlement and clearing of stock-exchange
transactions with the securities traded on the Prague Stock Exchange (Burza cennych papir(i Praha,
a. s.) and local custodians for the markets in Poland, Slovakia, Hungary, Romania and Turkey.
The collaborating entities may change over time, particularly when entering new markets.

7. Information on the remuneration of employees and officers paid to the
Fund’s employees and officers by the Sub-fund’s manager

The Fund, as the Sub-fund’s manager, has disclosed in its annual report information on the wages,
remuneration, fees and similar income paid to its employees and officers, broken down as stipulated
by the applicable regulations. The employees and officers’ fees and other remuneration are paid out
of the Management fee; the Management Fee for 2022 amounted to CZK 11,914 thousand.

8. Information on the remuneration of employees and officers paid by the
Sub-fund to the employees or officers whose activity has a significant
impact on the Sub-fund’s risk profile

The Sub-fund did not make any such payments in the Accounting Period.

9. Identification of assets with value exceeding 1% of the total value of the
Sub-fund’s resources

The Sub-fund’s assets in excess of 1% of the total value of the Sub-fund’s resources as at the
Valuation Date comprise ownership interests in Tado GmbH, Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH,
Cosmo Tech S.A.S., Zolar GmbH, Elig AB, Forto GmbH and Woltair,s.r.o. amounting to CZK
1,943,452 thousand. The Sub-fund’s interest in each company is up to 10% for most companies,
except for Zolar and Woltair, s.r.o., where it exceeds 10%. Other assets of CZK 91,492 thousand
consist of convertible loans provided to Cloud & Heat Technologies GmbH and Elig AB.
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10.Information on research and development activities

The Sub-fund did not engage in any R&D activities in the Reporting Period.

11.Information on environmental protection activities and labor relations

The Sub-Fund, being a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Fund from an accounting
and property perspective, is not involved in environmental protection; however, in the Accounting
Period, Inven Capital fully offset its CO2 emissions by planting trees in cooperation with the non-
profit organization Sazime stromy and became carbon neutral. In connection with its membership in
the international Leaders for Climate Action initiative, it also seeks to reduce its carbon footprint, for
example by consuming electricity exclusively from renewable sources, printing on recycled paper or
reducing air travel.

Since the Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property perspective, a part separated from the assets
and liabilities of the Fund, the Sub-fund did not have any employees in the Accounting Period.

12. Sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector

In 2022, the Fund formulated its internal sustainability strategy (the “Inven ESG Policy”), which it
published on its website (www.invencapital.cz) in the “Info for investors” section and which it will
update regularly inline with developments in legislation and market practice. The Fund takes
sustainability factors into account in its investment process and considers Subfund C to be a financial
product that promotes environmental and social characteristics in accordance with Regulation (EU)
2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council, Article 8(1). This Annual Report shall be
accompanied by a completed template for the periodic disclosures for the financial products referred
to in Article 8(1), (2) and (2a) of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and in the first subparagraph of Article 6
of Regulation (EU) 2020/852, showing the degree of compliance with the environmental and social
characteristics of that financial product.

13.Information on securities financing transactions (SFT)

No such transactions took place in the Accounting Period.

14.Foreign branch or a part of the undertaking abroad

The Sub-fund has no foreign branch or a part of the undertaking abroad.
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15. The Sub-fund’s fund capital and changes in share value

Balance as at: 31/12/ 2022 31/12/2021 31/ 12/ 2020
Fund capital of Subfund (EUR): 75,466,509 47,447,098 25,063,962
Number of the Sub-fund’s investment shares

issued and outstanding at the end of the 45,681 39,242 31,762

Accounting Period:
Number of the Sub-fund’s investment shares

issued in the Accounting Period: 6,439 7,480 15175
Number of the Sub-fund’s investment shares ) ) )
purchased in the Accounting Period:

Fund capital of Subfund per 1 share (EUR): 1,652.0327 1,209.0897 789.1178

Vyvoj hodnoty akcie Podfondu B v letech 2020-2022 (EUR)
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16.Information on major changes in the Sub-fund’s Statute

The following significant changes to the Sub-fund’s Statute were made in the Accounting Period:

With effect from 31 January 2022, the Board of Directors member, Ing. arch. Jan Makovsky, was
replaced by Mgr. Pavel Bare$, and Ing. Michal Kusak Ph.D. was added as the Board of Directors
member and Investment Director in the list of the Fund's officers under 3. Information on the
Administrator.
From the Information on the Consolidation Group in which the Administrator is included, the
information that the investment company is wholly owned by CINEKIN, a.s., has been deleted.

The Statute also includes a new paragraph 11.2 on sustainability risks.
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17.Information on the acquisition of own shares or ownership interests

The Sub-fund did not acquire its own shares or ownership interests in 2022.

18.Impact of the war in Ukraine on the accounting unit

Throughout the year, the Fund’s management monitored the situation in the Target Companies in
relation to the war in Ukraine and initiated the implementation of crisis plans in the Target Companies.
These plans include an analysis of the impacts on the business including measures to eliminate them
(e.g. diversification of supply channels, search for alternative suppliers of certain inputs, stocking up,
etc.), along with an analysis of the impacts on the financial plan and solutions to mitigate them as
much as possible.

Most of the Target Companies of the Funds have not been significantly adversely affected by this
military conflict, as most of the innovative products offered by the companies are only to a minor
extent dependent on energy and raw material supplies from Ukraine or the Russian Federation.
In addition, they operate mainly in Western Europe and Israel. Conversely, the steps taken to
accelerate Europe’s energy self-sufficiency and the pressure to reduce energy consumption have
accelerated the growth of some of the Target Companies.

Among the impacts of the war in Ukraine that the Target Companies had to deal with were mainly
delays in the delivery of certain materials and components (photovoltaic systems) and increased
transport and energy costs. As a result, certain projects were delayed as compared to the plan, gross
margins was lower for some companies due to higher costs, but overall the Target Companies were
able to cope with the challenges.

The valuation of the companies, which took place at the end of 2022, reflects the market reaction to
the war in Ukraine and its impact on the value of individual investments.

19.Subsequent events

As of 1 January 2023, a new Subfund D was created with the EIB as shareholder. Subfund D has
a four-year investment period, which will be followed by a five-year divestment period. A co-
investment agreement has been concluded between Subfund C and Subfund D, which works on
a similar basis to the co-investment agreement between Subfund A and Subfund B, where both
subfunds committed to co-invest EUR 100 million in European start-ups.

The management of the Fund considered the potential impacts of the conflict on its activities and
business and concluded it did not have asignificant effect on the going concern
assumption. Accordingly, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
prepared on the assumption that the Company would be able to continue as a going concern.

19



20.Comments on the Annexes attached

This Annual Report includes Annexes that include information on the Sub-fund’s performance.
In accordance with the generally binding legal regulations, this Annual Report also includes the
financial statements, including the notes to the financial statements, and the Independent Auditor's
Report. The Report on Relations is prepared at the level of the Fund. The figures contained in the
Annexes are in CZK thousands (unless otherwise stated). The investment fund’s balance sheet and
income statement contain data structured according to special accounting legislation. Each caption
contains information on the amount for the immediately preceding reporting period. If certain tables
or values are not filled in, the corresponding value is zero. Further information is provided in the notes
to the financial statements.

Prague, 14 April 2023

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
Ing. lvo Némejc Ing. Viktor MiSkovsky
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Annexes

1. Report on Relations as at 31 December 2022

2. Periodic disclosures for the financial products referred to in
Article 8(1), (2) and (2a) of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and in the
first subparagraph of Article 6 of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 as at
31 December 2022

3. Financial Statements as at 31 December 2022
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Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Report on Relations of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
for 2022

Date of preparation: March 2023 Enclosures: 1

This report has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 82 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on
Corporations and Cooperatives (the Corporation Act). In accordance with the Corporations Act, the
Report describes relations between the Controlling entity and the Controlled entity and between the
Controlled entity and entities controlled by the same Controlling entity; pursuant to the provisions of
Section 82, para. 1 through 4 of the Corporations Act, the Report has been prepared for the past
accounting period (from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022).

1. Structure of Relations
Controlled Entity and Author of Report on Relations

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Business registration number (IC): 020 59 533

Registered office: Pod kifizkem 1773/2, Branik, 147 00 Prague 4,

Entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
File No. 19323

Controlling Entity

CEZ, a. s.

Business registration number (IC): 45274649

Registered office: Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, zip code: 140 53

Entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B,
File No. 1581.

As at 31 December 2022, 100% of the founder’s shares are held by CEZ, a.s., with its registered office
in Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, zip code 140 53, business reg. no.: 45274649.

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., may establish sub-funds pursuant to Section 165 et seq. of the Act on
Management Companies and Investment Funds. The sub-fund is, from an accounting and property
perspective, a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Company. The Fund has so far
established three sub-funds: Inven Capital — Subfund A, Inven Capital — Subfund B a Inven Capital —
Subfund C.

As at 31 December 2022, CEZ, a.s., with its registered office in Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, zip code 140
53, business reg. no.: 45274649, and CEZ Teplarenska, a.s., with its registered office in Rigany,
BezruCova 2212/30, zip code 251 01, business reg. no.: 27309941, hold 99.86% and 0.14%,
respectively of investment shares in Inven Capital — Subfund A. CEZ Teplarenska, a.s., is an entity
controlled by CEZ, a.s.



As at 31 December 2022, 100% of investment shares in Inven Capital — Subfund B are held by the
European Investment Bank (EIB), with its registered office at 98-100 boulevard Konrad Adenauer, L-
2950 Luxembourg.

As at 31 December 2022, CEZ, a.s., with its registered office in Prague 4, Duhova 2/1444, zip code 140
53, business reg. no.: 45274649, and CEZ Teplarenska, a.s., with its registered office in Rigany,
Bezrucova 2212/30, zip code 251 01, business reg. no.: 27309941, hold 99.9% and 0.1%, respectively
of investment shares in Inven Capital — Subfund C. CEZ Teplarensk4, a.s., is an entity controlled by
CEZ, ass.

The Czech Republic, i.e. the Ministry of Finance, holds shares corresponding to 69.78% of the share
capital of the Controlling entity, CEZ, a.s.

Other entities controlled by the same controlling entity

According to the information provided by CEZ, a.s., the Board of Directors of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.,
has prepared a scheme of the structure of relations between entities controlled by the same controlling
entity, that is the entities controlled by CEZ, a.s.

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., is included in the CEZ Group; the CEZ Group also includes the CEZ Concern,
led by CEZ, a.s., as the managing entity. Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., is not a member of the CEZ
Concern.

2. Scheme of relations

For the scheme of relations see Appendix No. 1 to this Report.

3. Controlled entity’s role

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., is a self-governing investment fund that aims to bring CEZ Group know-how,
capacities and products in the field of “new energy” — especially in the area of energy services and
products for end customers, new technologies, decentralized resources, etc. in the EU region and other
nearby markets. The investment activities of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., should provide the CEZ Group
with innovative products and companies, as well as additional revenues and synergies with the present
customer and product portfolio of the CEZ Group.

4. Method and means of control

CEZ, a.s., directly controls Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., i.e. it is the majority shareholder of Inven Capital,
SICAV, a.s., and holds 100% of its founder’s shares. With regard to the above, CEZ, a.s., is entitled to
appoint or recall a majority of the controlled entity’s statutory body members.

5. Summary of actions taken during the reporting period at the initiative or in the interest of
other related parties

No acts pertaining to the assets with a value exceeding 10% of the controlled entity’s equity as stated
in the most recent financial statements were carried out at the initiative or in the interest of the controlling
entity or entities controlled by it.



6. Overview of contracts/agreements entered into by and between the related parties

The below overview includes contracts/agreements made by and between Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
(formerly Inven Capital, investiéni fond, a.s., and CEZ Nova energetika, a.s.) and CEZ, a.s., and other
entities controlled by the same controlling entity; it includes not only contracts/agreements concluded in
the relevant accounting period, but all agreements existing (i.e. effective) in 2022.

Contracting parties Contract/agreement Subject matter and date
number
. Contract for the provision of services —
CEZ Nova energetika, a.s. media services (website) dated 18 June
and CEZ, ass. 5600005989 2015 incl. Amendment no. 1 dated 24
September 2020

Inven Canital. investicni Service Level Agreement (SLA) dated 6

prta’, 5600008710 November 2017, incl. Amendments no. 1

fond, a.s. and CEZ, a.s.

through 6

Inven Capital, investicni
fond, a.s. and CEZ, a.s.

CONTRACT_2021_2211

Agreement for mutual credit frameworks in
connection with the agreement for the
provision of multi-level flexi on-line real
mutual cash pooling in CZK for an
economically related group, dated 28
January 2016, incl. Amendments no. 1
through 7

Inven Capital, investicni
fond, a.s. and CEZ, a.s.

CONTRACT_2021_2254

Agreement for mutual credit frameworks in
connection with the agreement for the
provision of multi-level flexi on-line real
mutual cash pooling in EUR for an
economically related group, dated 28
January 2016, incl. Amendments no. 1
through 5

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
and CEZ, a.s.

CONTRACT_2022_582

Agreement for subscription, issue and
repurchase of investment shares - Subfund
A dated 21 February 2018

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
and CEZ, a.s.

CONTRACT_2022_9

Agreement for subscription, issue and
repurchase of investment shares - Subfund
C dated 3 January 2022

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
and CEZ, a.s.

CONTRACT_2022_515

Agreement for mutual credit frameworks in
connection with the agreement for the
provision of multi-level flexi on-line real
mutual cash pooling in USD for an
economically related group
(MutualCreditFacilityAgreement) dated 1
February 2022

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Entrustment agreement for the performance
of an individual activity, incl. management of

and CEZ, a.s. 5600009180 an investment fund (performance of an
internal audit) dated 8 March 2018
. License agreement for the provision of the
Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. 5600011270 right to use trademark effective from 9
and CEZ, a.s.
January 2020
Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. : .
and CEZ ICT Services, 41/2021 g/loa251ter Services Agreement dated 12 April
S.I.0.
Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Subcontract for the provision of services
and CEZ ICT Services, 42/2021 42/2021 to the Master Services Agreement

S.r.o.

41/2021 dated 12 April 2021

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
and CEZ Prodej, a.s.

0201502284, 0201502287,
0201502320, 0201502323

Contracts for combined services of electricity
supply from LV networks dated 2 April 2020




Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Provision of services — recharge of travel
and CEZ, a.s. 4102550720 expenses

All the above agreements were signed at arm’s length; provided counter-performance corresponded to
arm’s-length conditions as well.

7. Assessment of any detriment suffered by the Controlled entity and possible compensation

In view of the legal relations between the Controlled entity and other Related Parties, it is evident that
the Controlled entity suffered no detriment as a result of agreements, other legal actions or other
measures concluded, made or accepted by the Controlled entity in the reporting period. For this reason,
no compensation has been assessed.

8. Assessment of advantages and disadvantages resulting from relations between related
parties

Based on the available information, the Board of Directors assessed the benefits and drawbacks of the
Company’s membership in the CEZ Group and concluded that the benefits outweighed and that the
Company generally profits from being a part of the entire concern. For example, the Company benefits
from the financial stability of the CEZ Group, its good reputation, as well as related cost savings in the
area of marketing, procurement, administration, etc. In addition, it uses service outsourcing, cash
pooling, and advanced cooperation options within the CEZ Group. The Board of Directors is not aware
of any risks arising from the relations between the entities described above, which would not be provided
for by standard means.

9. Other actions

In 2022, Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., did not perform any actions at the initiative or in the interest of the
Controlling entity or its controlled entities, which should be included in this Report pursuant to the
provisions of Section 82 para. d) of the Corporations Act.

10. Conclusion and Representation
This Report on Relations between Related Parties has been prepared by the statutory body of Inven
Capital, SICAV, a.s., within the legal deadline.

The statutory body declares that the above overview is complete and true. All activities have been
carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act and have not been intended to
obscure any other relationship.

This Report on Relations does not contain information the disclosure of which could cause material
damage to Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Furthermore, no information herein shall be deemed a trade secret
or classified information under special legislation.

The Report has been prepared to the best of the authors’ knowledge and belief; the authors drew on all
available materials and documents with every effort.

This Report is subject to review by the Supervisory Board of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Prague, 10 March 2023



Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Ing. Petr Mikovec Ing. Ilvo Némejc
Board of Directors Chair Board of Directors Vice-Chair

Appendix 1: Structure of Relations



Priloha 1 Schéma struktury vztahd v obdobi od 1. 1. 2022 do 31. 12. 2022

Nazev/vyse podilu [oo) Stat Adresa sidla
Ceska republika - M erstvo financi 00006947 Ceska republika Praha 1, Letenskd 525/15, Mal4 Strana, PSC 118 10

69,78 % 45274649 Ceska republika  Praha 4, Duhova 2/1444, PSC 140 53

100 % 24729035 Ceska republika  Dé&gin, Teplicka 874/8, Dé&in IV-Podmokly, PSC 405 02
— 100% 28255933 Ceska republika Hostivice, Komenského 534, PSC 253 01
100 % 44569688 Ceska republika Louny, Na Valich 899, PSC 440 01
100 % 47306891 Ceské republika Kadan, Tusimice 13, PSC 432 01
— 100% 60698101 Ceska republika  Trebi&, Brafova tt. 1371/16, Horka-Domky, PSC 674 01
— 100 % 03592880 Ceskd republika Praha 4, Duhové 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
- 100% 27804721 Ceské republika Ostrava, Vystavni 1144/103, Vitkovice, PSC 703 00
L 100% 47972033 Ceské republika  Ostrava, Na jizdarné 2767/21a, Moravska Ostrava, PSC 702 00
— 100% 29060109 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
- 100% 01873237 Ceské republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
— 100% 27282074 Ceska republika Praha 4, U plynarny 1388/18, Michle, PSC 140 00
o ENESAR.S. ] 27382052 Ceské republika  Praha 9, U Vobornikt 852/10, Vyso&any, PSC 190 00
— 100% 24772631 Ceské republika Brno, Turanka 1519/115a, Slatina, PSC 627 00
— 5% SKO-ENERGO FIN, s.r.o. v likvidaci . 61675954 Ceska republika Mlada Boleslay, tF. Véaclava Klementa 869, Mladd Boleslav |l PSC 293 01

vstup do likvidace 1. 1. 2022, zénik spole¢nosti 28. 12. 2022
- 12% 61675938 Ceské republika Mlada Boleslav 1, T V4clava Klementa 869, PSC 293 60
— 100% 25441931 Ceské republika Modlany, &.ev. 22, PSC 417 13
- 100% 27154742 Ceské republika Praha 5, Moulikova 3286/1b, Smichov, PSC 150 00

zvydeni podilu 0 49 % 1. 6. 2022 (ptvodné 51 %), zména sidla 15. 12. 2022 (ptvodné Praha 4, Na dolinach 168/6, Podoli, PSC 147 00)

100 % 44021470 Slovensko Bratislava, Hattalova 12, PSC 83103
e [* ;9 VESER, s.r.o."v likvidacii" . 36797332 Slovensko Bratislava, Suché Myto 1, Staré Mesto, PSC 811 03
zéanik spole¢nosti 19. 1. 2022
— 100% 27189465 Ceska republika Pardubice, U Panasonicu 376, Staré Civice, PSC 530 06
L 100% 44570473 Slovensko Bratislava, Pri Smaltovni 4, Petrzalka, PSC 851 01
zména sidla 16. 12. 2022 (plvodné Bratislava, Udernicka 11, PSC 851 01)
— 100 % 45791023 Ceské republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
— 50% 52963659 Slovensko Bratislava, Tomagikova 28C, Ruzinov, PSC 82101
zména sidla 15. 9. 2022 (plvodné Bratislava, Mlynské nivy 4956/42, Ruzinov, PSC 82109)
— 51% 47256265 Slovensko Bratislava, Plynarenské 7/C, PSC 82109
— 100% 47474238 Slovensko Trnava, Frantiskanska 4, PSC 917 01
— 100% 35796944 Slovensko Bratislava, Tomagikova 28C, Ruzinov, PSC 82101
zména sidla 22. 11. 2022 (plivodné Bratislava, Nova Rozfavské 3018/134/A, Nové Mesto, PSC 83104)
— 55% 31718523 Slovensko Presov, Volgogradska 88, PSC 080 Of
- 100% 31706053 Slovensko Presov, Volgogradska 88, PSC 080 01
— 100 % 35937190 Slovensko Bratislava, KaradZi¢ova 14, Ruzinov, PSC 82108
zména sidla 2. 12. 2022 (plivodné Bratislava, Turcianska 2, PSC 82109)
— 100% 36306941 Slovensko Nové Mesto nad Vahom, Srnianska 19, PSC 915 01
akvizice spole¢nosti 24. 2. 2022
L 50,23% 46823492 Slovensko Kysucky Lieskovec, Kysucky Lieskovec 847, PSC 023 34
akvizice spole¢nosti 14. 12. 2022
— 51% ENEER 07334214 Ceské republika  Havifov, Svornosti 86/2, Mé&sto, PSC 736 01
— 100% QIdilerd oA KN 45193631 Ceska republika  Roznov pod Radhogt&ém, Bozeny Némcové 1720, PSC 756 61
18051081 Ceské republika  Roznov pod Radhodtém, Tvartizkova 2740, PSC 756 61

{[[oB79 EPIGON spol. s r.o.
[0 3748 PIPE SYSTEMS s.r.o. 25887815 Ceska republika Roznov pod Radhostém, Tvar(izkova 2740, PSC 756 61

j[P[0B79 ELEKTROPROJEKTA SLOVAKIA, s.r.0. 36230804 Slovensko Piestany, Vajanského 58, PSC 92101
il (03798 Green energy capital, a.s. 14043505 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhové 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
— 100% 24131326 Ceska republika  Praha 5, Moulikova 3286/1b, Smichov, PSC 150 00

zména sidla 30. 9. 2022 (plivodné& Praha 4, Nuselska 419/92, Michle, PSC 140 00)

52,46 % 46356088 Ceska republika Husinec, Hlavni 130, Rez, PSC 250 68 L
17,39 % ——
100 % 00128201 Ceské republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
100 % 47718684 Ceskd republika Plzef, Tylova 1581/46, Jizni Predmésti, PSC 301 00
100 % 26722445 Ceska republika Husinec, Hlavni 130, Rez, PSC 250 68
— 100 % 60715871 Ceské republika  Brno, Resslova 972/3, Veveii, PSC 602 00
— 100% 28861736 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 2/1444, PSC 140 53
L a9% 45337241 Slovensko Bratislava, Tomégikova 22, PSC 82102
— 100% 26470411 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1531/3, PSC 140 53
L 100% 29148278 Ceskd republika Praha 4, Duhové 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
I 100% 08425817 Ceské republika Praha 4, Duhové 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
— 100 % 26378191 Ceska republika  Tachov, Vilémovska 1602, PSC 347 Of
— 100% 27310531 Ceské republika Frydlant, Brezova 1306, PSC 464 01
P TelNetHolding,s.ro. || 03845443 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
zanik spole¢nosti fuzi s Telco Pro Services, a. s., k 1. 7. 2022
100% EE e 27371123 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
zanik spole¢nosti fuzi s Telco Infrastructure, sro., k 1. 7. 2022
— 100% 24237744 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
v dUsledku fuze zanikajici spole¢nosti TelNet Holding, s.ro., jako plvodniho viastnika 100% podilu na spole¢nosti CERBEROS s.r.o. se spole¢nosti Telco Pro Services, a. s., jako spole¢nosti nastupnickou k 1. 7. 2022
je spole¢nost Telco Pro Services, a. s., od 1. 7. 2022 100% spole¢nikem spole¢nosti CERBEROS s.r.o.
— 85% 27547469 Ceské republika Hradec Krélové, Prazska tiida 485/3, Kukleny, PSC 500 04
v dlsledku fuze zanikajici spole¢nosti TelNet Holding, s.r.o., jako plvodniho 85% vlastnika spole¢nosti Magnalink, a.s., se spole¢nosti Telco Pro Services, a. s., jako spole¢nosti ndstupnickou k 1. 7. 2022
je spolecnost Telco Pro Services, a. s., od 1. 7. 2022 85% akcionarem spole¢nosti Magnalink, a.s.
- 100% 24156027 Ceskd republika  Zlin, Tyrsovo ndbrezi 5183, PSC 760 01 E—
I 69% 25352288 Ceské republika  Vsetin, Palackého 166, PSC 755 01 31%
L 100% 29460212 Ceskd republika  Valagské Mezitici, Zagovska 778, Krdsno nad Becvou, PSC 757 01
L 100% 48150029 Ceské republika Praha 10, Ruské 8, PSC 10100
akvizice spole¢nosti 31. 5. 2022
— 100% 25938924 Ceska republika Hradec Kralové, Kizikova 788/2, PSC 500 03
L 100% 13955454 Ceské republika  Praha 9, Ocelafska 1354/35, Libef, PSC 190 00
akvizice spole¢nosti 1. 6. 2022
— 99,57 % 24135780 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, PSC 140 53 0,39 %
— 100% 27232433 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1/425, PSC 140 53
L 100% 26349451 Ceské republika Praha 4, Duhova 1531/3, Michle, PSC 140 00
zména sidla 18. 5. 2022 (plvodn& Neumér, &p. 63, PSC 345 62)
— 100% 27309941 Ceska republika Ricany, Bezrucova 2212/30, PSC 251 01
100 % 22801600 Ceské republika  Klasterec nad OhFi, Jana Amose Komenského 450, Mifetice u Kldaterce nad Ohfi, PSC 431 51
100 % 26051818 Ceska republika lindfichtiv Hradec, Otin 3, PSC 377 01
zména vlastnika spole¢nosti 16. 5. 2022 (pvodné CEZ, a. s.)
— 100% 25006754 Ceska republika Usti nad Labem, Mezni 2854/4, Severni Terasa, PSC 400 11
zména vlastnika spole¢nosti 20. 5. 2022 (plivodn& CEZ Teplérenska, a.s.)
— 100% 29452279 Ceské republika Détmarovice, &p. 1202, PSC 735 71
— 100 % 04669207 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhové 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
— 100% 24263397 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
zénik spole¢nosti 2. 2. 2022
— 100% 04669134 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
w10 [*}48 Energotrans, a.s. 47115726 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
L 100% 29132282 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
— 100% 02059533 Ceska republika Praha 4, Pod kiizkem 1773/2, Branik, PSC 147 00
jedna se o zakladatelské akcie ve smyslu § 158 a nasl. zékona ¢. 240/2013 Sb., o investi¢nich spole¢nostech a investi¢nich fondech, ve znéni pozdéjsich predpisd
— 51,05 % 61465569 Ceskd republika Mofina, &p. 73, PSC 267 17
P OSC,as. ] 60714794 Ceska republika Brno, Starkova 557/18a, Ponava, PSC 602 00
zvy$eni podilu 0 0,78 % na 94,03 % 2. 2. 2022 (pavodné 93,25 %), zvy$eni podilu 0 5,97 % na 100 % 12. 6. 2022 (plvodné 94,03 %)
— 100% 49901982 Ceska republika Chomutov, Bozeny Némcove 5359, PSC 430 01
100 % 25020790 Ceska republika  Bilina, Déilinf 437, Mostecké Predmésti, PSC 418 01
100 % 25028197 Ceskarepublika Bilina, Diilni &p. 429, PSC 418 01
100 % 25438107 Ceskarepublika Kadaf, Tusimice 7, PSC 432 Of
— 40% 17641349 Ceska republika Ceské Budéjovice, Lipova 1789/9, Ceské Budgjovice 2, PSC 370 05 20% —|—
vznik spole¢nosti 18. 10. 2022
Il 34% 03479919 Ceska republika Praha 4, Duhova 1444/2, Michle, PSC 140 00
zvyéeni podilu pivodniho viastnika, tj. spoleénosti CEZ Obnovitelné zdroje, s.ro., 0 1% na 100 % 19. 10. 2022 (plivodn& 99 %), zména viastnika spolecnosti 7. 11. 2022 (nové CEZ, a. s., plivodné CEZ Obnovitelné zdroje, s.r.o.),
prevod dvou 33% podilt z CEZ, a. s., na dvé& spoleénosti mimo podnikatelské seskupeni ovlddané Ceskou republikou — Ministerstvem financi dne 16. 12. 2022
— 100% 25235753 Ceska republika Plzed, Orlik 266/15, Bolevec, PSC 316 00
akvizice spole¢nosti 24. 11. 2022
L 100% 27135471 Ceska republika Praha 6, Pod Berankou 2469/1, Dejvice, PSC 160 00

akvizice spole¢nosti 24. 11. 2022

W Ceska republika - Ministerstvo financi CR

M dcefiné spoleénosti Ministerstva financi CR (CEZ, a. s))
M dcefiné spolecnosti CEZ, a. s.

W vnucky CEZ, a. s.

M pravnugky CEZ, a. s.

M prapravnuéky CEZ, a. s.

¢len Koncernu CEZ

zanikla spolecnost - &len Koncernu CEZ
M zanikla spole¢nost

Pokracovani na dalsf strané.



Priloha 1 Schéma struktury vztahd v obdobi od 1. 1. 2022 do 31. 12. 2022

Adresa sidla

Praha 1, Letenska 525/15, Mala Strana, PSC 118 10

Praha 4, Duhova 2/1444, PSC 140 53

Amsterdam, Herikerbergweg 157, PSC 1101 CN

Sofia, Mladost District, 159 Tsarigradsko Shosse Blvd., BenchMark Business Centre, PSC 1784

Amsterdam, Herikerbergweg 157, PSC 1101 CN

Izmit, Kocaeli, Yahyakaptan Mahallesi, Sevval Sokak, No. 4/4, PSC 41050

Adapazari, Sakarya, Maltepe Mahallesi, Orhangazi Cad. No. 258, TEK Trafo istasyonu PK. 160, PSC 54100
Izmit, Kocaeli, Yahyakaptan Mahallesi, Sevval Sokak, No. 4/1, PSC 41050

istanbul, Miralay Sefik Bey Sokak, Akhan No. 15, Gumussuyu Beyoglu, PSC 34437

istanbul, Miralay Sefik Bey Sokak, No. 15, Kat: 1, Oda: 1, Gumussuyu Beyoglu, PSC 34437

istanbul, Miralay Sefik Bey Sokak, Akhan No. 15, Kat: 3, Oda: 3, Gumussuyu Beyoglu, PSC 34437
istanbul, Miralay Sefik Bey Sokak, Akhan No. 15, Kat: 3-4, Oda: 2, Gumussuyu Beyoglu, PSC 34437
Bucuresti, 2B lon lonescu de la Brad, Sector 1, PSC 013813

Budapest, 76 VAci ut, Capital Square, 6. torony, fszt., PSC 1133
Beograd, Bulevar Zorana Bindic¢a 65, PSC 110 70

Kyiv, Velyka Vasylkivska 5, PSC 01004

Chorzéw, ul. Marii Sktodowskiej-Curie 30, PSC 41-503
Amsterdam, Herikerbergweg 157, PSC 1101 CN
Amsterdam, Herikerbergweg 157, PSC 1101 CN
Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697
Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697

Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697
Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697
Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697
Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697

Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697

Warszawa, Aleje Jerozolimskie 63, PSC 00-697
Skawina, ul. Pitsudskiego 10, PSC 32-050

Chorzéw, ul. Marii Sktodowskiej-Curie 30, PSC 41-503
Chorzéw, ul. Marii Sktodowskiej-Curie 30, PSC 41-503
Amsterdam, Herikerbergweg 157, PSC 1101 CN
Chorzéw, ul. Sktadowa 17, PSC 41-500

Raciborz, ul. Piaskowa nr. 11, PSC 61-049

Poznarn, Pigtkowska 212A, PSC 61-693
Suchy Las, Obornicka 68, PSC 62-002

Czarnkéw, ul. Kosciuszki 97, PSC 64-700
Budapest, Rétkdz utca 5. 3.em. 4., PSC 1118
Jena, Géschwitzer Strafe 56, PSC 07745
Jena, Goschwitzer Strafe 56, PSC 07745
Jena, Géschwitzer Strafie 56, PSC 07745
Dietzenbach, Dieselstrafe 8, PSC 63128
Eppstein, Burgstrafe 81-83, PSC 65817

Eppstein, Burgstrafe 81-83, PSC 65817

Essen, Holzstr. 7-9, PSC 45141

Schnaittenbach, Am Scherhtibel 14, PSC 92253

Shanghai, Wuxing Road No. 385, Building 4, Pudong District
Russelsheim am Main, Hans-Sachs-StraB3e 19, PSC 65428
Magdeburg, Joseph-von-Fraunhofer Strafe 2, PSC 39106
Mistelgau, GartenstraB3e 19, PSC 95490

Suhl, Pfutschbergstrafe 14, PSC 98527

Dresden, Hamburger Strafe 65, PSC 01157

Mistelgau, GartenstraBe 19, PSC 95490

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Petaling Jaya, 8 Avenue, Jalan Sg. Jernih 8/1, Seksyen 8, PSC 46050
Lesnica, ul. Powstancéw Slaskich, lok. 1, PSC 47150

Neufahrn, Hanns-Braun-Strafie 59, PSC 85375

Mistelgau, GartenstraBe 19, PSC 95490
Berlin, An der Industriebahn 12-16, PSC 13088

Jena, Géschwitzer Strafe 56, PSC 07745

Berlin, GeneststraBe 5, PSC 10829
Berlin, Geneststrafe 5, PSC 10829
Berlin, GeneststraBe 5, PSC 10829
Berlin, Geneststrafe 5, PSC 10829
Berlin, GeneststraBe 5, PSC 10829
Berlin, Geneststrafe 5, PSC 10829

Berlin, Geneststrafe 5, PSC 10829
Heidelberg, SickingenstraBe 39, PSC 69126
Gutersloh, Am Anger 35, PSC 33332
Gutersloh, Am Anger 35, PSC 33332

Berlin, Landsberger Allee 117 A, PSC 10407
Munchen, Landsberger Strafe 396, PSC 81241
Munchen, Landsberger Strafe 396, PSC 81241

Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509

Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509

Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509

Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner StraBe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strae 10, PSC 97509
Templin-GroB Délin, Zum Flugplatz 9, PSC 17268
Templin-GroB Délin, Zum Flugplatz 9, PSC 17268
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Kolitzheim, Wadenbrunner Strafe 10, PSC 97509
Warszawa, ul. Jana Pawla Il 23, PSC 00-854
Bolzano, Via Galileo Galilei 10, PSC 39100
Bolzano, Via Galileo Galilei 10, PSC 39100
Bolzano, Via Galileo Galilei 10, PSC 39100
Bolzano, Via Galileo Galilei 10, PSC 39100
Monghidoro (BO), Via Provinciale 31, PSC 40063
Bologna, Via delle Lame 118, PSC 40122
Casaleone (VR), Via San Michele 3, PSC 37052
Chiari (BS), Via San Monticelli 4, PSC 1-25032

Latina, Via Priverno 18, PSC 04100
Bucuresti, 2B lon lonescu de la Brad, Sector 1, PSC 013813

Popesti-Leordeni, Jud. lifov, 11 Sos. Berceni, PSC 077160
Absam, Salzbergstrafe 133, PSC 6067

Absam, SalzbergstraBe 13, PSC 6067

Absam, Salzbergstrafe 133, PSC 6067

Absam, Salzbergstrafe 13, PSC 6067

Absam, Salzbergstrafe 133, PSC 6067

Barneveld, Zwolleweg 9, PSC 3771 NR

Barneveld, Zwolleweg 9, PSC 3771 NR

Barneveld, Zwolleweg 9, PSC 3771 NR

Barneveld, Zwolleweg 9, PSC 3771 NR

Be'er Sheva, Ha-Kotser St 20, PSC 2280

Vendres, ZAE Via Europe Est Rue de Stockholm, PSC 34350
Chippenham, 5 Callow Hill, Callow Park, Brinkworth, PSC SN15 5FD

Amsterdam, Herikerbergweg 157, PSC 1101 CN

Hamburg, Am Sandtorkai 74, PSC 20457

Hamburg, Am Sandtorkai 74, PSC 20457

Toulouse 8 Esplanade Compans Caffarelli, Immeuble Astria, PSC 31000
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506

Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506

Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Toulouse Cedex 5, 2 Rue du Libre Echange CS 95893, PSC 31506
Hamburg, Am Sandtorkai 74, PSC 20457

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217

Bremen, Stephanitorsbollwerk 3, PSC 28217
Hamburg, Am Sandtorkai 74, PSC 20457

Qormi, The Landmark, Level 1, Suite 2, Trig L~ lliun, PSC QRM 3800

Adresa sidla

Praha 1, Letenska 525/15, Mala Strana, PSC 118 10
Praha 7, D&lnicka 213/12, Holedovice, PSC 170 00
Praha 1, Vodickova 34 &p. 701, PSC 111 21

Praha 6, K letiéti 1019/6, Ruzyn&, PSC 16100
Praha 6, Jana Ka$para 1069/1, Ruzyné, PSC 16100
Praha 6, Aviaticka 1017/2, PSC 160 08

Praha 6, Jana Kaspara 1069/1, Ruzyné, PSC 160 08
Praha 1, Vodi¢kova 34/701, PSC 111 21

Praha 8, Thamova 181/20, PSC 186 00

Kladno, Cyrila Boudy 1444, Krogehlavy, PSC 272 01
Praha 8, Thdmova 181/20, Karlin, PSC 186 00

Praha 8, Thamova 181/20, Karlin, PSC 186 00

Praha 4, 5. kvétna 1640/65, Nusle, PSC 140 00
Kralupy nad Vltavou, Veltruska 748, PSC 278 01
Vohburg an der Donau, MERO - Weg 1, PSC 850 88
Praha 1, Jeruzalémské 964/4, PSC 110 00

Praha 8, Thamova 181/20, Karlin, PSC 186 00
Stonava, &p. 1077, PSC 735 34

Ostrava, Lihovarska 1199/10, Radvanice, PSC 716 00
Teplice, Libusina 2154, PSC 415 03

Karlovy Vary, |. P. Pavlova 2001/11, PSC 360 01

Praha, Beranovych 130, Letfiany, PSC 199 00

Brno, Jana Babaka 2733/11, Kralovo Pole, PSC 612 00
Praha 9, Beranovych 130, Letnany, PSC 199 00

Nazev/vyse podilu [oo) Stat
Ceska republika — Ministerstvo financi 00006947 Ceska republika
69,78 % =T £ 45274649 Ceské republika
— 100% 51661969 Nizozemsko
SR P CEZESCOBulgariakoop | BEEECEC Bulharsko
zéanik majetkové Ucasti v dUsledku prodeje celého podilu 5. 5. 2022
— 100% 24426342 Nizozemsko
— 50% 28317 Turecko
100 % 10941-18573 Turecko
100 % 25281 Turecko
— 37,36 % 255005 Turecko
100 % 736921 Turecko
100 % 745367 Turecko
LPOB 8 Akenerji Elektrik Enerijisi Ithalat Ihracat ve Toptan Ticaret A.S. 512971 Turecko
— 100 % . 21447690 Rumunsko
vstup do likvidace 31. 1. 2022, zanik spole¢nosti 8. 7. 2022
— 100 % 13520670-4013-113-01 Madarsko
zména sidla 1. 4. 2022 (plivodn& Budapest, Rétkoz u. 5, PSC 1118)
— 100 % 20180650 Srbsko
vstup do likvidace 23. 2. 2022
— 100 % 34728482 Ukrajina
— 100 % 0000321795 Polsko
— 100 % 82230714 Nizozemsko
— 100 % 24301380 Nizozemsko
— 100% 0000568025 Polsko
— 100% 0000441363 Polsko
vstup do likvidace 1. 7. 2022
— 100% 0000440952 Polsko
vstup do likvidace 1. 7. 2022
— 100% 0000610284 Polsko
vstup do likvidace 1. 7. 2022
— 100% 0000516616 Polsko
vstup do likvidace 1. 7. 2022
— 100% 0000610092 Polsko
vstup do likvidace 1. 7. 2022
— 100% 0000969468 Polsko
ukonceni konkurzu rozhodnutim soudu ze dne 25. 12. 2021, v dlsledku ¢ehoz doslo ke zméné nazvu na Eco-Wind Construction S.A. (plvodni ndzev Eco-Wind Construction S.A. w upadtosci),
prodej 1kusu akcie spole¢nosti Baltic Green Construction sp. z 0.0. 24. 2. 2022, zména pravni formy spole¢nosti na sp. z 0.0. (plvodné S.A) a zména identifikaéniho &isla spole¢nosti (plivodné 0000300426) 6. 5. 2022, vstup do likvidace 11. 5. 2022
— 99,33 % Ko 74 LI CE N L X2 0000266114 Polsko
j*['}”9 CEZ Skawina S.A. 0000038504 Polsko
jP[oB79 CEZ Chorzéw S.A. 0000541490 Polsko
L 100% AT Sp. 2 0.0. 0000627827 Polsko
— 100% QARULHEIEIT]-AA 65782267 Nizozemsko
— 77,68 % KAV NG KT X 0000678975 Polsko
BN EAl HPMP SPOLKA Z OGRANICZONA ODPOWIEDZIALNOSCIA 0000994045 Polsko
vznik spole¢nosti 26. 9. 2022
— 100% 0000616808 Polsko
— 96% 0000788905 Polsko
zvy$eni podilu 0 6 % 8. 4. 2022 (pavodné 90 %)
— 100% QUECICEE LX) 0000071593 Polsko
e '3 ETS Engineering Kft. 01-09-469090 Madarsko
438 Elevion Deutschland Holding GmbH HRB 513963 Némecko
EEETGIEAN Elevion GmbH HRB 45601 Némecko
— 100% PEEIACCY.X HRB 504087 Némecko
il *1*}790 EAB Elektroanlagenbau GmbH Rhein/Main HRB 41069 Némecko
100 % HRB 4993 Némecko
akvizice spole¢nosti 19. 10. 2022
100 % HRB 10376 Némecko
akvizice spole¢nosti 19. 10. 2022
— 100% HRB 4844 N&mecko
— 100% HRB 509730 Nemecko
L 100% 91310115791438905Y  Cina
— 100% HRB 508518 Nemecko
— 100% [EyeTY HRB 9535 N&mecko
mRLLE HermosAG | HRB 3996 Nemecko
100 % . HRB 100983 Némecko
zanik spole¢nosti fuzi s Hermos AG na zékladé zépisu do obchodniho rejstitku dne 28. 4. 2022 s rozhodnym dnem fuze 1. 1. 2022, pficemz v dlsledku tohoto zéniku sou¢asné presel na spole¢nost Hermos AG
také dosavadni podil spole¢nosti Hermos Gesellschaft fir Steuer-, Mef3- und Regeltechnik mbH na spole¢nosti HERMOS International GmbH o velikosti 29,28 %
100 % HRB 16037 Némecko
70,72 % HRB 4187 Némecko
- 100% 717709-H Malajsie
100 % 0000243856 Polsko
100 % HRB 136955 Némecko
akvizice spole¢nosti 20. 1. 2022
il ({[0B798 Hermos Schaltanlagen GmbH HRB 2326 Némecko
— 100% HRB 110337 B Némecko
zména vlastnika spole¢nosti 30. 6. 2022 (plvodné CEZ ESCO Il GmbH)
mi *[* B398 Elevion Vorrats GmbH HRB 520124 Neémecko
vznik spole¢nosti 27.10. 2022
— 100% HRB200647B  Némecko
— 100% HRB155983B  Némecko
— 100% HRB148661B  Némecko
100 % HRB149310B  Némecko
100 % HRB159001B  N&mecko
100 % HRB183196B  Némecko
dne 15. 7. 2020 doslo ze zdkona ke zruseni spole¢nosti v disledku zahdjeni insolvenéniho Fizenf
— 100% HRB135379B  Némecko
— 100% HRB 739111 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 12561 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8588 N&mecko
— 100% HRB208712B  Némecko
— 100% HRB 225124 N&mecko
— 100% HRB 278660 Nemecko
zména pravni formy spole¢nosti (plivodné GmbH & Co. KG) a zména identifikacniho ¢isla spole¢nosti (plvodné HRA 105340) 29. 8. 2022
— 100% HRB 5161 Nemecko
— 100% HRA 10310 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8580 Nemecko
— 100% HRA 10311 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8581 Nemecko
— 100% HRA 10312 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8584 Nemecko
— 100% HRA 10313 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8585 Nemecko
— 100% HRA 10314 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8582 Nemecko
ELLEA Belectric SP Solarprojekte 17 GmbH&CokG | | HRA 10183 Nemecko
zénik majetkové Ucasti v disledku prodeje celého podilu 28. 11. 2022
— 100% HRA 10184 Nemecko
— 100% HRA 10187 Nemecko
LU Belectric SP Solarprojekte 20 GmbH&Co. k6 | | HRA 10188 Nemecko
zéanik majetkové Ucasti v disledku prodeje celého podilu 28. 11. 2022
LKA Climagy PV-Sonnenanlage GmbH&CokG | | HRA 9274 Nemecko
zénik majetkové Ucasti v disledku prodeje celého podilu 28. 11. 2022
i [*F798 Climagy PV-Sonnenanlage Verwaltungs-GmbH HRB 6255 Némecko
— 100% HRA 9465 Nemecko
P78 Climagy Stromertrag Verwaltungs-GmbH HRB 6655 Némecko
— 100% HRA2504 NP N&mecko
— 100% HRBO623NP  Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8306 N&mecko
— 100% HRB 8313 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8312 Nemecko
— 100% HRB 8311 Némecko
—_49% 388490 Polsko
— 100% 02036810213 Itdlie
— 100% 01749660211 Italie
— 100 % [ 02936480215 Itdlie
100 % 02296040229 Itdlie
70 % 03139141208 [talie
100 % 02825841204 Itdlie
100 % 02523770218 ltdlie
100 % 02069370986 Itdlie
akvizice spole¢nosti 4. 8. 2022
— 100% 02406930590 Italie
)M CEZESCORomaniaSRL. || 39717494 Rumunsko
zména pravni formy spolecnosti 25. 2. 2022 (plvodné S.A), vstup do likvidace 9. 8. 2022, zanik spole¢nosti 9. 11. 2022
— 99,99 % 16645925 Rumunsko
— 100% FN 529923 z Rakousko
— 100% FN2562904v  Rakousko
— 100% FN 199510y Rakousko
— 100% FN 377866k  Rakousko
— 100% FN348462w  Rakousko
akvizice spole¢nosti 20. 6. 2022
— 66% 862388430 Nizozemsko
— 100% 862395112 Nizozemsko
— 100% 851147896 Nizozemsko
— 100% 853131971 Nizozemsko
— 100% 514481241 lzrael
— 100% 514456078 Francie
— 100% 07462075 Velka Britanie
akvizice spole¢nosti 28. 1. 2022
— 100% 77019717 Nizozemsko
— 100% HRB 141626 Némecko
— 100% HRB 157136 Nemecko
- 100% 830572699 Francie
— 100% 813057817 Francie
— 100% 797909546 Francie
il *['B798 Ferme Eolienne de Saint-Laurent-de-Céris SAS 807395454 Francie
— 100% 813057981 Francie
— 100% 811797331 Francie
— 100% 807395512 Francie
— 100% 819634361 Francie
— 100% 819459017 Francie
— 100% 820979540 Francie
— 100% 819576075 Francie
— 100% 813057445 Francie
-0 38 Ferme éolienne de Saugon SAS, société en liquidation . 811688092 Francie
prevod 1kusu akcie na spole¢nost CEZ Erneuerbare Energien Beteiligungs Il GmbH 1. 7. 2022, vstup do likvidace 15. 7. 2022, zénik spole¢nosti 28. 11. 2022
— 100% 814322012 Francie
-3l Ferme éolienne d’Allas-Nieul SAS, société en liquidation | | 804574564 Francie
prevod 1kusu akcie na spole¢nost CEZ Erneuerbare Energien Beteiligungs Il GmbH 1. 7. 2022, vstup do likvidace 1. 7. 2022, zénik spole¢nosti 6. 12. 2022
— 100% 805011715 Francie
— 100% 538265000 Francie
— 100% 797909637 Francie
— 100% HRB 141607 N&mecko
— 100% HRA28356 HB  Nemecko
— 100% HRB30409HB  N&mecko
100 % HRA2612HB  Nemecko
100 % HRA261I6HB  Némecko
100 % HRA26699HB  Nemecko
— 100% HRB30201HB  Némecko
100 % HRA27087HB  Némecko
100 % HRA24214HB  Nemecko
100 % HRA25725HB  Némecko
100 % HRA25228HB  Némecko
— 100% HRB28044HB  Némecko
— 100% HRA24600HB  Némecko
— 100% HRA28452HB  N&mecko
L 2550% HRA29626 HB  Nemecko
zména sidla 1. 1. 2022 (plvodné Wérrstadt, Energie-Allee 1, PSC 55286), zména identifikadniho &isla spolenosti 16. 8. 2022 (plivodné HRA 41847)
— 100% HRA28344HB  Nemecko
— 100% HRB 140377 Nemecko
pirevod 100% podilu ve spoleénosti CEZ Deutschland GmbH ze strany CEZ, a. s., jakozto plivodniho viastnika na spole&nost CEZ RES International BV., a to prostfednictvim nepenézitého priplatku
na vytvoreni vlastniho kapitalu mimo zékladni kapitél nejprve spole¢nosti CEZ Holdings B.V. a nasledné stejnym zplsobem do vlastniho kapitélu spolecnosti CEZ RES International BV, to vée 21. 12. 2022
— 100 % KeR[EVET T B TET C 99826 Malta
zmeéna nazvu spole¢nosti 11. 1. 2022 (plvodni ndzev CEZ CI Limited)
B Ceské republika - Ministerstvo financi CR
M dcefiné spole¢nosti Ministerstva financi CR (CEZ, a. s.)
dcefiné spolecnosti CEZ, a.s.
W vnutky CEZ, a.s.
B pravnucky CEZ, a. s.
B prapravnucky CEZ, a. s.
B praprapravnucky CEZ, a.s.
prapraprapravnucky CEZ, a. s.
M praprapraprapravnu¢ky CEZ, a. s
¢len Koncernu CEZ
W zanikla/prodand spole¢nost
Nazev/vyse podilu [oo) Stat
Ceska republika — Ministerstvo financi 00006947 Ceska republika
— 100% 60193531 Ceska republika
— 84% 63078333 Ceska republika
— 100% 28244532 Ceska republika
100 % 24253006 Ceska republika
100 % 25674285 Ceska republika
100 % 27145573 Ceska republika
i )} Exportni garanéni a pojistovaci spoleénost, a.s. 45279314 Ceska republika
— 100% 26175291 Ceska republika
komplementdr je IMOB a.s. v likvidaci
it :R: 974 HOLDING KLADNO a.s."v likvidaci" 45144419 Ceska republika
— 100% 60197901 Ceska republika
— 100% 08207763 Ceska republika
—54,35% 63080249 Ceska republika
— 100% 60193468 Ceska republika
—100% S Germany GmbH 1562122768 Némecko
— 49% 60196696 Ceska republika
— 100% QIS EES 46355901 Ceska republika
— 100% 05979277 Ceské republika
- 100% OKD, HBZS, a.s. 47676019 Ceska republika
NP4 Severoceské mlékarny, a.s. 48291749 Ceska republika
')} 3 THERMAL-F, a.s. 25401726 Ceska republika
i (/[ B798 Vyzkumny a zkusebni letecky ustay, a.s. 00010669 Ceska republika
100 % 01438875 Ceské republika
s 738 VZLU TECHNOLOGIES, a.s. 29146241 Ceska republika
jooF/9 VZLU TEST, a.s. 04521820 Ceské republika

W Ceské republika - Ministerstvo financi CR
M dcefiné spoleénosti Ministerstva financi CR
W vnugky Ministerstva financi CR

M pravnugky Ministerstva financi CR

Praha 9, Beranovych 130, Letnany, PSC 199 00

1akcie —

0,67%

29,28 % j

0,02 %

0,01%

1% —

1% —

25,50 % ]

16 %




Sustainable
investment means
an investment in an
economic activity
that contributes to
an environmental or
social objective,
provided that the
investment does not
significantly harm
any environmental or
social objective and
that the investee
companies follow
good governance
practices.

The EU Taxonomy is
a classification
system laid down in
Regulation (EU)
2020/852,
establishing a list of
environmentally
sustainable
economic activities.
That Regulation
does not lay down a
list of socially
sustainable
economic activities.
Sustainable
investments with an
environmental
objective might be
aligned with the
Taxonomy or not.

ANNEX IV

Template periodic disclosure for the financial products referred to in Article 8, paragraphs 1, 2 and
2a, of Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 and Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852

Product name: Inven Capital — Podfond B (“Sub-Fund B”)
Legal entity identifier: 75160706 (NIC of Sub-Fund B)

Environmental and/or social characteristics

Did this financial product have a sustainable investment objective? [tick and fill in as relevant,
the percentage figure represents the minimum commitment to sustainable investments]

([ X ) Yes

It made sustainable
investments with an
environmental objective: %

in economic activities that
qualify as environmentally
sustainable under the EU
Taxonomy

in economic activities that do
not qualify as environmentally
sustainable under the EU
Taxonomy

It made sustainable investments
with a social objective: %

o X No

It promoted Environmental/Social (E/S)
characteristics and

while it did not have as its objective a
sustainable investment, it had a proportion of
% of sustainable investments

with an environmental objective in economic
activities that qualify as environmentally
sustainable under the EU Taxonomy

with an environmental objective in
economic activities that do not qualify as
environmentally sustainable under the EU
Taxonomy

with a social objective

& It promoted E/S characteristics, but did not
make any sustainable investments

To what extent were the environmental and/or social characteristics promoted

by this financial prod uct met? [list the environmental and/or social characteristics promoted by the

financial product. For the financial products referred to in Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation (EU)
2020/852 (Taxonomy), in respect of sustainable investments with environmental objectives, list the

environmental objectives set out in Article 9 (Environmental objectives) of that Regulation to which the
sustainable investment underlying the financial product contributed. For financial products that made
sustainable investments with social objectives, list the social objectives]

Environmental and social characteristics promoted by Sub-Fund B



Sustainability
indicators measure
how the
environmental or
social
characteristics
promoted by the
financial product
are attained.

Our investment strategy intends to promote environmental or social characteristics, or a
combination of those characteristics, provided that the companies in which the
investments are made follow good governance practices in accordance with Article 8 of
SFDR (REGULATION (EU) 2019/2088 OF THE EUROPEAN PARLIAMENT AND OF THE COUNCIL
of 27 November 2029).

We are committed to investing in a responsible way by actively integrating environmental,
social and governance considerations into our investment selection and ongoing monitoring
process. Specifically, we aim at:

a) investing into companies where we see a commitment towards ESG goals,

b) supporting these companies with the process of defining their own ESG strategy
and policy as well as their implementation,

c) ensuring that the companies in which the Sub-Fund B invests ideally benefit
investors, society and the environment.

We monitor several metrics during our investment process that are listed in our ESG policy
(document Inven ESG policy) published on our website www.invencapital.cz in the section
Info for Investors.

The ESG metrics we consider in our investment process can be divided into the following
areas: general environment, carbon footprint, material management, supply chain,
employees, customers, community, diversity and inclusion, general governance and board
of directors.

How did the sustainability indicators perform?
Performance of ESG characterictics promoted by Sub-Fund B in 2022

In 2022 we collected data from 5 out of the total of 7 portfolio companies that comprised
Sub-Fund B as of the end of 2022.

Even though we first invested into these companies between 2018-2020, i.e. before the
SFDR regulation came into force, we considered a number of sustainability indicators during
our investment process. First, we ensured that the activities of our portfolio companies did
not belong to a list of excluded activities (e.g. activities harming the environment and
society, child labor, weapons production etc) as defined in Sub-Fund B statute. Then, we
also checked that the companies we invest in benefit the society or environment in certain
way.

After we formulated our ESG policy and framework in a structured way during 2022 (as
described in detail in our Inven ESG policy on our website), we approached our portfolio
companies with ESG data questionnaires and held interviews with them to determine their
approach to ESG.

The summary of data we collected from 5 portfolio companies is decribed in broader
categories below.

General commitment towards ESG



A commitment towards ESG goals was demonstrated in all our monitored portfolio
companies in 2022. 2 companies have an ESG policy documented, 3 portfolio companies
formulated an environmental commitment.

Environmental metrics

3 companies measured carbon footprint scope 1 and 2 in 2022, 1 company was
implementing the measurement.

4 companies have some carbon reduction initiatives in place. Most companies recycle
waste. 2 companies measured waste as part of the carbon footprint calculation.

4 companies consumed green electricity when asked about their renewable sources of
energy.

Social metrics

All companies have a code of conduct in place.

4 companies measured employee satisfaction with the average result of 62.
Diversity and includion policy was found in 2 companies.

Governance metrics

All companies had established Cyber security measures and GDPR policy.

There were independent board members in 60% of the companies. Female board members
were represented on 3 Boards of Directors.

All companies had anti-corruption policy.

The second round of data collection will happen in the first half of 2023 and it will also
enable us to prepare the principal adverse sustainability impacts statement as set out in
Annex 1 of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2022/1288.

...and compared to previous periods? [include for financial products where at least one
previous periodic report was provided]

Data from previous reporting periods are not available as 2022 was the first reporting
period for Sub-Fund B.

What were the objectives of the sustainable investments that the financial
product partially made and how did the sustainable investment contribute to such
objectives? [include for financial products that made sustainable investments, where not included
in the reply to the above question, describe the objectives. Describe how the sustainable investments
contributed to the sustainable investment objective. For the financial products referred to in Article 6,
first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852, list the environmental objectives set out in Article 9 of
that Regulation to which the sustainable investment underlying the financial product contributed]

Sub-Fund B didn"t make any sustainable investments in 2022.



How did the sustainable investments that the financial product partially made not
cause significant harm to any environmental or social sustainable investment

objective? [include where the financial product includes sustainable investments]

How were the indicators for adverse impacts on sustainability factors taken
into account?

Sub-Fund B didn’t make any sustainable investments in 2022.

Were sustainable investments aligned with the OECD Guidelines for Multinational
Enterprises and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights? Details:

Sub-Fund B didn’t make any sustainable investments in 2022.

How did this financial product consider principal adverse impacts on
sustainability factors? [include section if the financial product considered principal adverse impacts on

Principal adverse
impacts are the

most significant sustainability factors]

negative impacts of

investment Even thought Sub-Fund B did not make any sustainable investments, it considered the
decisions on the principal adverse indicators on sustainability throught its own ESG framework and
sustainability factors will publish the Principal adverse sustainability impacts statement defined in Appendix 1
relating to

of COMMISSION DELEGATED REGULATION (EU) 2022/1288 on Inven’s website (Inven

environmental, . . . .
Capital) in the section Info for investors by the end of June 2023.

social and employee
matters, respect for
human rights, anti-
corruption and an

What were the top investments of this financial product?
bribery matters.

Largest investments Sector % Assets Country

Zolar EVs installations 40% Germany

_The ":t '”CLUdeS the Forto Logistics 33% Germany
investments tado Energy efficiency 9% Germany

constituting the
greatest proportion
of investments of
the financial product
during the reference
period which is:
1.1.2022-31.12.2022




[Include a statement for the financial products referred to in Article 6, first paragraph, of Regulation
(EU) 2020/852]

The EU Taxonomy sets out a “do not significant harm” principle by which Taxonomy-
aligned investments should not significantly harm EU Taxonomy objectives and is
accompanied by specific Union criteria.

The “do no significant harm” principle applies only to those investments underlying
the financial product that take into account the Union criteria for environmentally
sustainable economic activities. The investments underlying the remaining portion
of this financial product do not take into account the Union criteria for
environmentally sustainable economic activities.

What was the proportion of sustainability-related investments?

[include note for the Sub-Fund B had not made a commitment in sustainable investments with a social

financial products objective.

referred to in Article 6,

first paragraph, of What was the asset allocation?

Regulation (EU)

2020/852

Taxonomy-aligned

activities are [Include only relevant boxes, remove irrelevant ones for the financial product]

expressed as a share

of:

- turnover reflects
the “greenness” of

investee
companies today.
- capital
expenditure #1B Other E/S
(C:pEx) shows the Investments characteristics = 100%

green investments
made by investee
companies,
relevant for a
transition to a

green economy.
operational #20ther includes the remaining investments of the financial product which are neither aligned with the
environmental or social characteristics, nor are qualified as sustainable investments.

#2 Other = 6%

#1 Aligned with E/S characteristics includes the investments of the financial product used to attain the
environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product.

expenditure

(OpEXx) reflects the [include the note below where the financial product made sustainable investments]

green operational The category #1 Aligned with E/S characteristics covers:

activities of - The sub-category #1A Sustainable covers environmentally and socially sustainable investments.

s e - The sub-category #1B Other E/S characteristics covers investments aligned with the environmental or

R social characteristics that do not qualify as sustainable investments.
companies.

Note: #2 Other includes portfolio companies that we did not gather data from.

Asset allocation
describes the
share of
investments in
specific assets.

In which economic sectors were the investments made?



[include note only for
the financial products
referred to in Article 6,
first paragraph, of
Regulation (EU)
2020/852]

Enabling activities
directly enable
other activities to
make a substantial
contribution to an
environmental
objective.

Transitional
activities are
activities for which
low-carbon
alternatives are not
yet available and
among others have
greenhouse gas
emission levels
corresponding to the
best performance.

[include note for the
financial products
referred to in Article 6,
first paragraph, of
Regulation (EU)
2020/852 that invest
in environmental
economic activities
that are not
environmentally
sustainable economic
activities]

‘{%} are
sustainable
investments with an
environmental
objective that do
not take into
account the criteria
for environmentally
sustainable
economic activities
under Regulation
(EU) 2020/852.

The investments were made into the following sectors: hydrogen production,
electromobility, logistics, EVs and heatpumps installations, energy consumption
optimization, Al.

To what extent were the sustainable investments with an environmental

objective aligned with the EU Taxonomy? [inciude section for the financial products
referred to in Article 6 , first paragraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 and include information in
accordance with Article 51 of this Regulation]

Did the financial product invest in fossil gas and/or nuclear energy related
activities complying with the EU Taxonomy?

Yes
In fossil gas In nuclear energy
X No

The graphs below show in green the percentage of investments that were aligned with the EU
Taxonomy. As there is no appropriate methodology to determine the taxonomy-alignment of sovereign
bonds*, the first graph shows the Taxonomy alignment in relation to all the investments of the financial
product including sovereign bonds, while the second graph shows the Taxonomy alignment only in
relation to the investments of the financial product other than sovereign bonds.

1. Taxonomy-alignment of investments 2. Taxonomy-alignment of investments
including sovereign bonds* excluding sovereign bonds*
Turnover Turnover x%
CapEx CapEx
OpEx OpEx
0% 50% 100% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

m Taxonomy aligned investments m Taxonomy aligned investments

Other investments Other investments

*For the purpose of these graphs, ‘sovereign bonds’ consist of all sovereign exposures

There were no sustainable investments made in 2022. However, we are aware of the need
to implement EU taxonomy screening for our portfolio companies. As of the 2022 year end
the alignment with EU taxonomy is considered at 0% due to the lack of available data. The
investee companies are private start-up companies where data are not often publicly
available.

We are currently working on taxonomy screening implementation and will present the
results in the following reporting periods.

What was the share of investments made in transitional and enabling activities?
[include a breakdown of the proportions of investments during the reference period]

There were no investments in transitional and enabling activities.



== [include note for

financial products
where an index has
been designated as a
reference benchmark
for the purpose of
attaining the
environmental or
social characteristics
promoted by the
financial product]

Reference
benchmarks are
indexes to
measure whether
the financial
product attains the
environmental or
social
characteristics that
they promote.

@

How did the percentage of investments that were aligned with the EU Taxonomy

compare with previous reference periods? [include where at least one previous periodic
report was provided]

Year 2022 is the first reporting period for Sub-Fund B.

What was the share of sustainable investments with an environmental

objective not aligned with the EU Taxonomy? [include section only for the financial
products referred to in Article 6, first subparagraph, of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 where the financial
product included sustainable investments with an environmental objective that invested in economic
activities that are not environmentally sustainable economic activities, and explain why the financial
product invested in economic activities that were not Taxonomy-aligned]

There were no sustainable investments with an environmental objective.

What was the share of socially sustainable investments? [inciude only where the
financial product included sustainable investments with a social objective]

There were no socially sustainable investments.

What investments were included under “other”, what was their purpose and were
there any minimum environmental or social safeguards?

The investments included under ,,other” are investments that we did not collected data
from, however, these investments have software business models and an environmental
objective.

What actions have been taken to meet the environmental and/or social

characteristics during the reference period? [iist the actions taken within in the period covered
by the periodic report to meet the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product,
including shareholder engagement as referred to in Article 3g of Directive 2007/36/EC and any other
engagement relating to the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product]

Inven’s investment managers actively engaged with the portfolio companies during 2022
to introduce them our ESG strategy and examine the state of their ESG policies and
activities. Inven evaluated the ESG readiness of the portfolio companies based on initial
analysis using our ESG Initial Questionnaire and ESG data evaluation form filled during
an interview between the investment managers and the portfolio company. Inven
assisted the portfolio companies with setting up their ESG priorities and goals based on
the requirements of each portfolio company.

Regular monitoring (at least annually) was set up and will happen in the first quarter of
each year.

How did this financial product perform compared to the reference benchmark?
[include section where an index has been designated as a reference benchmark for the purpose of attaining
the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product and indicate where the
methodology used for the calculation of the designated index can be found]
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We haven’t designated any reference benchmark for this financial product.
How does the reference benchmark differ from a broad market index?

How did this financial product perform with regard to the sustainability indicators

to determine the alignment of the reference benchmark with the environmental
or social characteristics promoted?

How did this financial product perform compared with the reference benchmark?

How did this financial product perform compared with the broad market index?



Inven Capital - Subfund B

Financial Statements as at 31 December 2022

(Translation of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Czech —
See Note 2 to the Financial Statements)



Company: Inven Capital - Podfond B

Registered office: Pod kiizkem 1773/2, Prague 4 - Branik, CZ

Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 692

Scope of business: autonomous investment fund

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2022

(in CZK thousands) Note 2022 2022 2022 2021

Gross Adjustment Net Net
ASSETS

1 Cash in hand and balances with central banks 0 0 0 0
2 State zero-coupon bonds and other securities eligible 0 0 0 0
for refinancing with the central bank 0 0 0 0
of whic a) issued by government institutions 0 0 0 0
b) other 0 0 0 0
3 Due from banks and cooperative savings associations 7 189 0 189 2117
of whic a) repayable on demand 189 0 189 2117
b) other receivables 0 0 0 0
4 Receivables from non-banking entities 0 0 0 0
of whic a) repayable on demand 0 0 0 0
b) other receivables 0 0 0 0
5 Debt securities 0 0 0 0
of whic a) issued by government institutions 0 0 0 0
b) issued by other entities 0 0 0 0
6 Shares, unit certificates and other participations 5 1943 452 0 1943 452 1219110
7 Ownership interests constituting a significant influence 0 0 0 0
of which: in banks 0 0 0 0
8 Ownership interests constituting a dominant influence 0 0 0 0
of which: in banks 0 0 0 0
9 Intangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0
a) goodwill 0 0 0 0
10  Tangible fixed assets 0 0 0 0
of whic a) land and buildings for operating activities 0 0 0 0
b) other operating assets 0 0 0 0
11 Other assets 6,8 91 492 0 91 492 51039
12 Receivables from subscribed share capital 0 0 0 0
13 Deferred expenses and accrued income 0 0 0 0
Total assets 2035133 0 2035133 1272266




as at 31 December 2022

(in CZK thousands) Note 2022 2021 #
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 Due to banks and cooperative savings associations 0 0
of whic a) repayable on demand 0 0
b) other payables 0 0
2 Liabilities to non-banking entities 0 0
of whic a) repayable on demand 0 0
b) other payables 0 0
3 Payables from debt securities 0 0
of whic a) issued debt securities 0 0
b) other payables from debt securities 0 0
4 Other liabilities 10 125 160 92 731
5 Deferred income and accrued expenses 0 0
6 Provisions 11 90 098 0
of whic a) for pensions and similar liabilities 0 0
b) for taxes 0 0
¢) other 90 098 0
7 Subordinated liabilities 0 0
8 Share capital 0 0
of whic a) share capital paid up 0 0
9 Share premium 0 0
10 Reserve funds and other funds created from profit
of whic a) statutory reserve funds and risk funds 0 0
b) other reserve funds 0 0
¢) other funds from profit 0 0
11 Revaluation fund 0 0
12 Capital funds 1068 594 858 114
13 Gains or losses from revaluation 9 957 149 417 645
of whic a) assets and liabilities 957 149 417 645
b) hedging derivatives 0 0
¢) translation of ownership interests 0 0
14 Retained earnings or accumulated losses 9 -109 592 -60 507
15 Profit / (loss) for the period 9 -96 277 -35716
Total equity 1819 875 1179 535
Total equity and liabilities 2 035133 1272266
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS as at 31 December: 2022 2021
Off-balance sheet assets: 1819 875 1179535

Assets provided for management
Signature of the statutory body:



Company: Inven Capital - Podfond B

Registered office: Pod kiizkem 1773/2, Prague 4 - Branik, CZ
Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 692

Scope of business: autonomous investment fund

INCOME STATEMENT
for 2022

(in CZK thousands) Note 2022 2021
1 Interest income and similar income 14 8 886 4794
of whic Interest on debt securities 0 0
2 Interest expense and similar expense 0 0
of whic interest expense from debt securities 0 0
3 Income from shares and ownership interests 0 0
of whic a) income from ownership interests constituting a significant influence 0 0
b) income from ownership interests constituting a dominant influence 0 0
¢) other income from shares and ownership interests 0 0
4 Fee and commission income 0 0
5 Fee and commission expense 13 -11914 -16 741
6 Profit or loss on financial operations 14 -6 510 -29 265
7 Other operating income 0 0
8 Other operating expenses 0 0
9 Administrative expenses 0 0
of whic a) staff costs 0 0
of which: aa) wages and salaries 0 0
ab) social security and health insurance 0 0
b) other administrative expenses 0 0
10 Release of provisions and allowances for tangible and 0 0
intangible fixed assets 0 0
11 Depreciation/amortization, charge for and use of provisions and 0 0
allowances for tangible and intangible fixed assets 0 0
12 Release of allowances and provisions for receivables and guarantees, recoveries 0 0
of receivables previously written off 0 0
13 Write-offs, charge for and use of allowances and provisions for 0 0
receivables and guarantees 0 0
14  Release of allowances against ownership interests constituting 0 0
dominant or significant influence 0 0
15 Loss on the transfer of ownership interests constituting dominant or 0 0
significant influence, charge for and use of allowances against ownership interests constituting dominan 0 0
16  Release of other provisions 0 0
17 Charge for and use of other provisions 11 -90 098 0
18  Share in profit/(losses) of ownership interests constituting dominant or significant influence 0 0
0 0
19 Profit/(loss) for the period from ordinary activities before taxes -99 636 -41212
23 Income tax 12 3359 5496
24  Profit/(Toss) for the period after taxation -96 277 35716

Signature of the statutory body:

Ing. Ivo Némejc Ing. Viktor Miskovsky



Company: Inven Capital - Podfond B
Registered office: Pod kfizkem 1773/2, Prague 4 - Branik, !

Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 692
Scope of business: autonomous investment fund

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for 2022
Reference Text Accounting period
2022 2021
P. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2117 12 218
Cash flows from operating activities
Z. Net profit on ordinary activities before tax -99 636 -41 212
Al Adjustments for non-cash movements 90 546 27084
A.1.1.  Amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables
A.1.2.  Change in allowances and provisions 90 098
A.1.3.  Revaluation of assets 9334 31878
A.1.4.  Gain/loss on disposal of fixed assets
A.1.5.  Interest expense and interest income -8 886 -4 794
A.1.6.  Other non-cash movements
A* Net cash from operating activities before taxation, changes in working capital
and extraordinary items -9 090 -14 129
A2. Change in non-cash components of working capital 258 -23 391
A.2.1.  Change in other assets, prepayments and accrued income -33 546
A.2.2.  Change in other liabilities, accruals and deferred income 258 10 155
A.2.3.  Change in inventory
AF* Net cash from operating activities before taxation and extraordinary items -8 832 -37519
A3. Interest paid
A4 Interest received
AS. Tax paid
A.6. Gains and losses on extraordinary items
A.***  Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities -8 832 -37519
Cash flows from investing activities
B.1. Purchase of fixed assets -203 653 -137 501
B.2. Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 76
B.*** Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 203577 -137 501
Cash flows from financing activities
C.1. Change in long-term liabilities and short-term loans
C.2. Change in receivables/payables related to group cashpooling
C.3. Effect of changes in equity on cash 210481 164 919
C3.1. Effect of changes in basic capital on cash
C3.2. Dividends or profit sharing paid
C.***  Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 210 481 164 919
F. Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents -1928 -10 101
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents due to merger
R. Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 189 2117
Signature of the statutory body:
Ing. Ivo Némejc Ing. Viktor Miskovsky

Board of Directors Vice-chair Member of the Board of Directors



Company: Inven Capital - Podfond B

Registered office: Pod kiizkem 1773/2, Prague 4-Branik, (
Alternative ID No. (NIC): 751 60 692

Scope of business: autonomous investment fund

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Gains or losses from  Profit (loss) brought  Profit (loss) for the

Other capital funds revaluation forward year Total equity
Balance as at 1 January 2020 693 195 25116 -42 981 -17 526 657 804
Issue/repurchase of investment shares 164919 164 919
Revaluation of investments 392 529 392 529
Distribution of profit (loss) brought forward -17 526 17 526
Profit (loss) for the year -35716 -35716
Balance as at 31 December 2020 858 114 417 645 -60 507 -35716 1179 535
Issue/repurchase of investment shares 210 480 210 480
Revaluation of investments 526 136 526 136
Sale of investments 13368 -13 368
Distribution of profit (loss) brought forward -35716 35716
Profit (loss) for the year -96 277 -96 277
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1068 594 957 149 -109 592 96277 1819 874
Signature of the statutory body:
Ing. Ivo Némejc Ing. Viktor Miskovsky

Board of Directors Vice-chair Member of the Board of Directors



1. DECSRIPTION OF THE SUB-FUND

Inven Capital — Subfund B (hereinafter “Subfund B”) is a sub-fund of Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s., (hereinafter the “Company” or the “Fund”), formerly Inven Capital,
investi¢ni fond, a.s., and prior to that CEZ Nové energetika, a.s., is a joint-stock company established
on 1 September 2013 with the registered office located at Pod kfizkem 1773/2, Prague 4, the Czech
Republic, Company ID No. 02059533.

The Czech National Bank’s (CNB) decision to grant alicense to conduct the activities of an
autonomous investment fund came into legal force on 31 August 2016 and the company changed its
business name to Inven Capital, investi¢ni fond, a.s. with effect from 1 September 2016. With effect
from 1 February 2018, the Fund as a joint-stock company was transformed into a variable-capital
joint-stock company (SICAV) within the meaning of Section 367 of the Act; alongside the change of
legal form, the Company changed its name to Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. The Fund is an autonomous
investment fond of qualified investors in the form of a joint-stock company with variable registered
capital. No significant changes were made to the public register entry in 2022.

The sole shareholder of Subfund B is the European Investment Bank (EIB), with registered office
located at 98-100 boulevard Konrad Adenauer, L-2950 Luxembourg.

Members of the Fund’s statutory and supervisory bodies as at 31 December 2022:

Board of Directors

Chairman Petr Mikovec
Vice-Chairman lvo Némejc
Member: Viktor MiSkovsky

Supervisory Board

Chairman Tomas Pleskacé
Vice-Chairman Martin Novak
Member: Vojtéch Kopp

The Fund has no foreign branch.

Inven Capital — Subfund B was created on 1 February 2018 by the decision of the Fund’s Board
of Directors and was registered in the register maintained by the CNB on 7 February 2018.
In accordance with Section 165(1) of ICIFA, the Sub-fund is, from an accounting and property
perspective, a part separated from the assets and liabilities of the Fund.

The Sub-fund’s investment shares are held by the EIB.

Subfund B has its own investment strategy and its own Statute. The investment strategy is always
set out in the Statute. The version of the Sub-fund’s Statute valid as at 31 December 2022 is dated
31 December 2022.

The Sub-fund’s investment strategy focuses on investments in growth-stage cleantech startups from
the EU, with scalable business models proven by sales and a strong growth potential. The Sub-fund
is interested in sectors such as energy efficiency, distributed power generation, flexibility and energy
storage, energy data services, clean transport, smart city, and the like.



2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with Decree No. 501/2002
Coll., which implements certain provisions of Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, as amended,
for accounting entities that are banks and other financial institutions, of 6 November 2002, as
amended, stipulating the structure and content of the financial statements and the scope of
disclosures for banks and certain financial institutions, and with the Czech accounting standards for
financial institutions as applicable for 2022 and 2021.

As of 1 January 2021, the Decree 501/2002, Coll., stipulates that for the purposes of recognition,
measurement and disclosure of financial instruments, an entity shall proceed in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards regulated by directly applicable regulations of
the European Union governing the application of international accounting standards (individually
“International Accounting Standard” or collectively “IFRS”).

These financial statements have been prepared for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022. The previous accounting period lasted from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Explanation Added for Translation into English

These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles and standards
generally accepted in the Czech Republic. Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that
conform with generally accepted accounting principles and standards in the Czech Republic may not
conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied by Subfund B in preparing the 2022 and 2021 financial statements
were as follows:

a) Transaction Recognition Date

Depending on the type of transaction, a transaction is recognized on the day on which a cash
payment is made or collected, foreign currency or securities are purchased or sold, a payment or
collection from the client’s account is made, funds (foreign currency) are credited according to the
bank’s notification, a securities transaction is settled, a guarantee or loan commitment is issued or
accepted or values are accepted to custody.

Accounting transactions that involve the purchase and sale of financial assets with normal delivery
date (spot transactions) and fixed-term transactions (forwards, futures and swaps) and options are
recorded in off-balance sheet accounts between the contract date and the settlement date.

A financial asset or a part thereof is derecognized from the balance sheet if Subfund B loses control
over the contractual rights to the financial asset or part thereof. Subfund B will lose control if the
rights to the benefits defined in the contract are exercised or waived or if they expire.

b) Foreign Currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in local currency translated at
the exchange rate published by the Czech National Bank (“CNB”) as at the transaction date.
Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, together with forex spot
transactions prior to maturity are translated to local currency at the rate published by the CNB as at
the financial statements date. Any gain or loss resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies is recognized in the ‘Profit or loss on financial operations’ caption
of the income statement with the exception of items revalued to fair value through equity.
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¢) Financial Instruments
i.  Financial instrument classification

A financial asset is mainly cash, an equity instrument of another entity or a contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset.

A financial liability is mainly a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset.
Financial liabilities and assets are presented as current (short-term) or non-current (long-term).

Financial assets are presented as current when the Fund expects to realize them within 12 months
of the balance sheet date or if there is no reasonable certainty that the Fund will hold the financial
assets for more than 12 months of the balance sheet date. Financial liabilities are presented as
current when they are due within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

ii. Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into two main categories (a) at amortized cost and (b) at fair value
depending on whether the financial asset is held for trading or is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows.

The Fund defines financial assets to the following categories:
a) financial assets at amortized cost

This category includes the financial assets held with strategy to collect contractual cash flows, which
consist of both principal and interest payments. Examples for such financial assets are trade
receivables. Expected foreign exchange rate differences and interest income are recognized in the
income statement.

b) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

In the case of debt securities, this category includes the financial assets held with strategy to collect
contractual cash flows or to sell financial assets.

The Fund also invests in the Fund’s portfolio companies. These equity instruments do not contain
a commitment to transfer economic resources. The Fund owns shares that are redeemable by the
issuer only at its own decision. The Fund uses the option to account for changes in the fair value of
these assets using the FVOCI method. The change in fair value on revaluation, or any gain/loss on
the sale of these assets will not be reclassified to profit or loss, and therefore never affects profit or
loss. Allowances are neither calculated nor recorded. Changes in the fair value are recognized in
equity through the ‘Gain or loss on revaluation’ caption. In case that equity instrument was sold, an
accumulated revaluation reserve is reclassified to retained earnings. Foreign exchange rate
differences are recognized in equity (part of revaluation reserve).

¢) financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

This category includes financial assets which, on initial recognition, were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and which cannot be classified as equity instruments
because they contain a counterparty’s commitment to transfer economic resources to the Fund;
convertible loans fall into this category as well. Convertible loans include an obligation to convert the
principal and accrued interest in the shares of a portfolio company and, at the same time, an
obligation to pay the Sub-fund’s principal with interest if no conversion occurs. In measuring
convertible loans, the fair value is measured separately for the principal and the derivative
representing the discount on the converted shares. Convertible loans are recognized in other assets
in the balance sheet.

Allowances are neither calculated nor recorded. Changes in the fair value and foreign exchange rate
differences are recognized in the income statement.
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iii. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in
a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair value is the market value as published by local or foreign stock exchange or the value
determined by a qualified estimate or expert opinion, if the market value is unavailable.

Based on the method of measuring the fair value, the Fund records financial instruments in the
following structure:

Level 1: Fair value is determined based on unadjusted market prices of identical assets and
liabilities that are quoted in active markets;

Level 2: Fair value is determined using techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly;

Level 3: Fair value is determined based on techniques which use inputs which have

a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable
market data and thus use unobservable inputs.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments:

iv.  Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amount of cash and other current financial assets approximates fair value due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

V. Non-current debt and equity financial assets
The fair values of non-current debt and equity financial assets, which are publicly traded on active
markets, are determined based on quoted market prices. The fair values of non-current debt and
equity financial assets, which are not publicly traded on active markets, are determined using
appropriate valuation models.

vi.  Short-term receivables and Payables

The carrying amount of receivables and payables approximates fair value due to the short-term
maturity of these financial instruments.

d) Amounts due from banks
Receivables from banks, current accounts held with banks and short-term financial deposits with
maturity not exceeding 3 months. Receivables from banks denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Czech crowns at the exchange rate prevailing as at the balance sheet date as published
by the Czech National Bank.

e) Other liabilities
Other liabilities are initially measured at their nominal value, including transaction costs; they were

recognized at fair value as at the financial statements date. As at 31 December 2020, other liabilities
were recognized at fair value.
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Other liabilities represent mainly liabilities to investors who have sent funds to the Sub-fund’s bank
account and to whom investment shares have not been issued for these funds by the end of the
accounting period.

f) Other assets

Receivables originated by the Sub-fund are initially measured at their nominal value including
transaction costs; they were recognized at fair value as at the financial statements date.

Other assets consist mainly of convertible loans that are measured at fair value (see Note 3c).
g) Provisions

Provisions represent probable performance of uncertain timing and amount. Provisions are
recognized if the following criteria are met:

- there is a present obligation (legal or substantial) to perform, which results from past events,

- the performance is probable and will require an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits,

- areasonably reliable estimate can be made of the performance.

Additions to provisions are recognized in the relevant income statement caption, their use is
recognized together with the costs or losses for which the provisions were created in the relevant
income statement caption. The release of provisions that are no longer needed is recognized in
Creation and release of other provisions. Provisions are created in the currency in which the related
performance is expected to be made.

h) Equity

For each sub-fund, the Fund issues investment shares that represent equal shares in the fund capital
of the given sub-fund. The investment shares issued for a sub-fund have the following rights
attached: the right to a share in profit ensuing only from the performance of the given sub-fund and
the right to a share of the liquidation surplus ensuing only upon the dissolution of the sub-fund with
liquidation. The shares are issued as no-par value (NPV) shares, i.e. shares with no nominal value
listed on the share.

The currency of the investment shares of Subfund B is in EUR. The Company’s shares have been
issued as securities and have not been admitted to trading on a regulated market, i.e. they are not
listed on any regulated (or other European) market or admitted to trading in any multilateral trading
facility.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Subfund B does not create a reserve fund.
i) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Company management
prepared these estimates and predictions based on all available relevant information. These
estimates and assumptions are based on information available as at the date of the financial
statements and may differ from actual results.

j) Recognition of Revenues and Expenses
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are recognized in the

periods in which the actual flow of the related goods or services occurs, regardless of when the
related monetary flow arises.
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Operating expenses and other fees related to the management and administration of the Sub-fund
are recognized in the ‘Fee and Commission Expense’ caption in the period in which they were
incurred.

Interest income on debt securities is recognized in the ‘Interest Income and Interest Expense’
caption.

k) Income tax

The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate and book income
before taxes, increased or decreased by the appropriate permanent and temporary differences (e.g.
non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, differences between book and
tax depreciation, etc.). In addition, the following items are taken into consideration: tax base
decreasing items (donations), tax deductible items (tax loss, research and development costs) and
income tax reliefs.

The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for corporate
income tax purposes, taking into consideration the period of realization.

) Subsequent events

The impact of events that occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of the financial
statements preparation is recognized in the financial statements provided these events provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet.

If material events reflecting the facts occurring after the balance sheet date happened between
the balance sheet date and the date of the financial statements preparation the consequences of
these events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements but not recognized in the financial
statements.

m) Changes in accounting policies

In 2022, no changes were made to the accounting policies that would affect the financial statements
of Subfund B.

n) Equity instruments

The Sub-fund has one shareholder and one type of redeemable shares issued; in accordance with
IAS 32 16A — 16D there are no subordinate, preference, or other types of shares, all shares carry
the same rights. Investment shares meet the definition of a puttable instrument and the exceptions
stipulated in IAS32.16A-B. For this reason, the Fund classifies and recognizes investment shares in

equity.

4. INITIAL APPLICATION OF IFRS 9

The Fund presented financial statements where the recognition of financial instruments is governed
by IFRS 9 and related standards (in particular IAS 32, IFRS 7, IFRS 13, IFRS 16) for the first time
for the 2021 accounting period; the change has been prospective and the comparative period has
not been adjusted. As the Company’s investments were already measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income as regards shares and interests and its financial assets were already
measured at fair value through profit or loss as regards convertible loans in the past accounting
periods, the application of IFRS does not have a material impact on the measurement classification
of these financial instruments in the financial statements.
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5. SHARES, UNIT CERTIFICATES AND OTHER INTERESTS

The item Shares, unit certificates and other interests includes Ownership interests in portfolio
companies. The Sub-fund’s interests are not listed on active markets. The fair value measurement
was carried out as at 31 December 2022.

Summary of changes in shares, unit certificates and other interests (in CZK thousands):

Shares, unit Balance

certificates and as at Additions Revaluation %e;lf?g;azzszﬁt Additions  Revaluation %e;lf?g;azzszgt
other participations 01/ 01/ 2021

FVOCI 667,100 137,880 414,130 1,219,110 197,205 527,137 1,943,452
Total 667,100 137,880 414,130 1,219,110 197,205 527,137 1,943,452

For all investments in the form of shares, the Fund used the method of measuring a financial asset
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) in accordance with IFRS 9.5.7.5 as at
31 December 2022.

The additions of CZK 197,205 thousand represent additional investments in Zolar (CZK 113,506
thousand), Woltair (CZK 44,653 thousand), CosmoTech (CZK 37,929 thousand), and increased
investments due to the capitalization of transaction costs (legal advisory services) in the amount of
CZK 1,116 thousand.

The fair values of purchased interests in portfolio companies are determined on the basis of Level 3,
i.e. using techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that
are not based on observable market data. For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period, i.e. to
Level 1 (fair value measurement using quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities) or to Level 2 (fair value measurement using other techniques for which all inputs
which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly).

The Fund did not change the hierarchy level for any of the ownership interests in 2022.

The following information was used from reliable sources available as at the measurement date:
a) The International Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation (IPEV) Guidelines (2022);
b) Refinitiv Eikon financial database; and
c) Exchange rates published by the Czech National Bank.

The fair value of all the Sub-fund’s investments has been determined in EUR as at the measurement
date. These values were translated into CZK at the rate published by the Czech National Bank as at
31 December 2022.

Interests in portfolio companies were measured as follows as at 31 December 2022:
a. Cloud&Heat Technologies GmbH

Cloud&Heat's value was determined based on the Guideline Public Company Method (GPC),
which is commonly used to value start-up companies not being profitable. The multiple of
enterprise value (EV) to sales (EV/sales) was determined using publicly available data on
comparable companies from the Refinitiv Eikon database. For Cloud&Heat, two multiples were
used, i.e. for hardware sales (1.3) and software business (3.6). The resulting value of the
company was adjusted for cash and debt as at 31 December 2022 and a 5% illiquidity deduction
was applied; based on the resulting equity value, the Sub-fund’s interest (19,017 Series B
shares) was valued at CZK 60,312 thousand.
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CosmoTech

Cosmo Tech’s value was determined based on the GPC method, which is commonly used to
value start-up companies not yet being profitable. Due to the unique business model, it was not
possible to find exactly comparable companies, so a broader sample was applied comprising
small software development companies operating in the EU that share financial and operational
characteristics with Cosmo Tech. The multiple of enterprise value (EV) to sales (EV/sales) was
determined 3.6 using publicly available data from the Refinitiv Eikon database. The resulting
value of the company was adjusted for cash and debt as at 31 December 2022 and a 5%
illiquidity deduction was applied; based on the resulting equity value, the Sub-fund’s interest
(3,470,050 Series D shares and 1,413,872 Series E shares) was valued at CZK 59,974
thousand.

Elig AB

As in the cases above, Elig AB’s value was determined based on the GPC method, which is
commonly used to value start-up companies not yet being profitable. The multiple of enterprise
value (EV) to sales (EV/sales) was determined 3.6 using publicly available data from the Refinitiv
Eikon database. The sample includes companies from the SaaS segment. The resulting value
of the company was adjusted for cash and debt as at 31 December 2022 and a 5% illiquidity
deduction was applied; based on the resulting equity value, the Sub-fund’s interest (153,941
Series A2 shares) was valued at CZK 30,144 thousand.

Forto GmbH

The value of investment in Forto GmbH was estimated on the basis of a post-money valuation
resulting from a recent financing round; it was determined by independent entities and adjusted
for a percentage change in the market capitalization of comparable companies. For this purpose,
software companies operating in the transport sector were selected. The interest was valued
based on the holding of 3,573 Series B+1 shares and 297 Series C shares and is estimated to
amount to CZK 666,659 thousand.

Tado GmbH

The value of investment in Tado GmbH was estimated on the basis of a post-money valuation
resulting from the recent financing rounds, which took place in September and December 2022
under the same conditions as the third round planned for Q1 2023; the value has been accepted
by several independent parties. The transactions were selected as a fair value indicator because,
inter alia, of their proximity to the measurement date. The interest in Tado GmbH was valued at
CZK 187,084 thousand based on the holding of 3,433 F preference shares and 1,156
G preference shares.

Woltair

The valuation of Woltair was based on the price accepted by an independent party from the
recent funding round, i.e. August 2022. The interest was valued at CZK 130,462 thousand based
on the holding of 4,433 Series C shares and 2,762 Series D shares.

Zolar GmbH

The value of investment in Zolar GmbH was estimated based on the valuation accepted by
several independent parties during the last financing round in February 2022. At the same time,
the development of the implied multiple from the financing round was confirmed to be in line with
the European solar and renewable energy industry. The interest was valued based on the holding
of 6,136 Series B-2 shares, 4,552 Series B shares and 1,938 Series C shares and is estimated
to be CZK 808,817 thousand.

Sensitivity

The fair values of portfolio companies are mainly impacted by sales (sales volume, share of recurring
and non-recurring engagements, volume of services provided) and the EV/sales multiples of
comparable listed companies used. The multiples may fluctuate depending on the market
development and the overall economic situation, especially as regards new market segments, where
the multiplies may reflect current perception of market participants. Positive expectations of the
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development of a given market segment lead to higher multiples and higher fair value of companies,
while negative expectations have the opposite effect and result in a decrease in the fair value.

The table below shows the change in the value of the Subfund B portfolio in the event of a 10%
change in the above unobservable inputs.

Fair value

as at

% change in the
investment value

Change in the
investment value

| 31 December Significant unobservable Change in with a 10% with a 10% change
nvestment . . . .
2022 inputs unobservable inputs change in in unobservable
(in CZK unobservable inputs
thousands) inputs (In CZK thousands)
Increase or
Cloud&Heat 60,312 2022 revenues decrease in 20% 12,066
revenues
Increase or
CosmoTech 59,974 2022 revenues decrease in 12% 7,258
revenues
Increase or
Eliq 30,144 2022 revenues decrease in 7% 2,158
revenues
Valuation of the company . .
from the last financing CEﬁg%ﬁ ?h;ilu:tifn
Forto 666,659 round adjusted for market ing , 10% 66,666
developments (EUR 1,397 market participants
i ’ expectations
million)
. Change in valuation
Valuation of the company due to change in
Tado 187,084 from the last financing market articig ants’ 10% 18,708
round (EUR 297 million) particip
expectations
Valuation of the company CEﬁg%ﬁ ?h;ilu:tifn
Woltair 130,462 from the last financing market parti cig ants’ 10% 13,046
round (EUR 53 million) particip
expectations
Valuation of the company Czﬁgsﬁ ?h;ilu:tifn
Zolar 808,817 from the last financing ing , 10% 80,882
round (EUR 402 milliony ~ Market participants
expectations
TOTAL 1,943,452 10% 200,785

The table below summarizes equity shares in the Subfund portfolio companies:

(in CZK thousands)

Equity interest

Fair value as at

Equity interest as at

Fair value as at

as at 31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021 31/ 12/ 2021

Cloud&Heat 6.5% 60,312 6.5% 55,388
CosmoTech 11.1% 59,974 8.9% 52,629
Elig 7.7% 30,144 7.7% 31,075
Forto 2.4% 666,659 2.8% 638,604
NeuronSW - exit 4.7% 0
Tado 3.2% 187,084 3.6% 172,280
Woltair 11.9% 130,462 11.1% 34,083
Zolar 8.4% 808,817 10.1% 235,051
Total 1,943,452 1,219,110
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None of the Sub-fund’s interests in any of the companies reaches 20%. The revaluation of
investments as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was included directly in equity.

6. LOANS GRANTED

Summary of changes in convertible loans granted:

. Balance as at o . . Balance
(in CZK thousands) 31/ 12/ 2020 Additions  Disposals  Revaluation Interest as at
31/ 12/ 2021
Loans and
borrowings — with the 25,445 40660  (2,061) (30,725) 4794 51,039
right to exchange for
ownership interests
Derivative 12,926 n/a
Total 38,371 40,660 (2,061) (30,725) 4,794 51,039
Balance
(in CZK thousands) I?ﬁl/a? (2:?23()52? Additions  Disposals  Revaluation Interest as at
31/ 12/ 2022
Loans and
borrowings — with the 51,039 135,028  (94,127) (9,334) 8,886 91,492
right to exchange for
ownership interests
Total 51,039 135,028 (94,127) (9,334) 8,886 91,492

In 2022, the Subfund provided loans with the right to exchange for ownership interests to Cloud&Heat
Technologies GmbH, Elig AB, NeuronSW SE, CosmoTech, Woltair s.r.o. and Zolar GmbH in the
amount of CZK 135,028 thousand. The loans to NeuronSW, CosmoTech, Woltair and Zolar were
converted into shares during 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Subfund records convertible loans
with Cloud&Heat and Elig in the amount of CZK 91,492 thousand. The loans with the right to
exchange for ownership interests are included in the Other assets balance sheet caption.

Convertible loans include an obligation to convert the principal and accrued interest in the shares of
a portfolio company and, at the same time, an obligation to pay the Sub-fund’s principal with interest
if no conversion occurs. The value of an embedded derivative is included in the measurement of the
instrument. Changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

Sensitivity

The above convertible loans were measured at fair value as at 31 December 2022. Their value is
particularly affected by:

a. Probability of individual scenarios (exit, financing round, maturity, default); where the
realisation of each scenario is closely linked to the fulfilment of the portfolio company’s
business plan;

b. Date of each scenario (except the default scenario);

c. Cost of equity (for all convertible loans used 35% based on publicly available study 2022
Private Capital Markets Report by Pepperdine University);

d. Cost of debt (as per the convertible loan agreement).

Given the complexity of the inputs affecting the value of convertible loans, it is difficult to quantify the
sensitivity of this type of investment to alternative scenarios of possible developments. The value
can fall to zero in the event of a company’s bankruptcy or, on the contrary, it can multiply several
times.

In connection with the loans to Cloud&Heat Technologies GmbH and Elig AB (and prior to the
conversion date to NeuronSW SE, CosmoTech, Woltair s.r.o. and Zolar), interest of CZK 8,886
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thousand was recognized as at 31 December 2022; in connection with the loans to Cloud&Heat
Technologies GmbH, NeuronSW SE, CosmoTech and Woltair s.r.o., interest of CZK 4,794 thousand
was recognized as at 31 December 2021.

7. AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

Cash consists of:

(in CZK thousands) 31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021
Current account balances 189 2,117
Total 189 2,117

As at 31 December 2022, all amounts due from banks are measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) in accordance with IFRS 9.

8. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets include:

(in CZK thousands) 31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021
Convertible loans 91,492 51,039
Total 91,492 51,039

For more information on convertible loans, see Note 6 (Loans granted).

9. EQUITY

31/12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021 31/ 12/ 2020
Fund capital of Sub-fund (in CZK thousands): 1,819,875 1,179,535 657,804
Fund capital of Sub-fund (in EUR thousands): 75,467 47 447 25,064
Number of investment shares of the Sub-fund issued
and outstanding at the end of the accounting period 45,681 39,242 31,762
(number of items):
_Number of |nv§stmeqt shares of the 'Sub-ft,.lnd issued 6.439 7.480 15,175
in the accounting period (number of items):
Number of investment shares of the Sub-fund ) ) )
purchased in the accounting period (number of items):
Fund capital of Sub-fund per 1 share (CZK): 39,838.7703 30,057.9698 20,710.3993
Fund capital of Subfund per 1 share (EUR): 1,652.0328 1,209.0897 789.1179

Balance as at: 31 December 2022 (in CZK)

Fund capital: CZK 1,819,874,865 (converted at the rate of 24.115 CZK for 1 EUR as of 31 December
2022)

Fund capital per share: CZK 39,838.7703

Balance as at: 31 December 2021 (in CZK)
Fund capital: CZK 1,179,534,851 (converted at the rate of 24.86 CZK for 1 EUR as of 31 December
2021)
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Fund capital per share: CZK 30,057.9698
Individual equity items are disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity above (p. 6).
Fund capital

In 2022, other capital funds increased by CZK 210,480 thousand to CZK 1,068,594 thousand due to
the issue of investment shares in connection with investments in new companies. In 2021, other
capital funds increased by CZK 164,919 thousand to CZK 858,114 thousand due to the issue of
investment shares in connection with investments in new companies as well.

Gains or losses from revaluation

In 2022 and 2021, gains or losses from revaluation increased by CZK 539,504 thousand and CZK
392,529 thousand, respectively in connection with revaluation to fair value as at 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021, respectively.

Profit (loss) brought forward

Profit (loss) brought forward represents a loss of CZK 109,592 thousand as at 31 December 2022,
which was increased by CZK 35,716 thousand in 2022 due to the loss from 2021 (in 2022 the
General Meeting of the Fund approved the transfer of the 2021 loss to profit (loss) brought forward)
and the loss from the sale of NeuronSW of CZK 13,368 thousand.

As at 31 December 2021, profit (loss) brought forward was a loss of CZK 60,507 thousand, which
was increased by CZK 17,526 thousand due to the loss in 2020.

Profit (loss) for the year
Profit (loss) for the year 2022 was CZK (96,277) thousand. The loss will be transferred to the profit
(loss) brought forward after the approval by the Fund’s General Meeting. In 2021, the loss was CZK

(35,716) thousand and, after the approval of the Fund’s General Meeting, was transferred to Profit
(loss) brought forward.

10. OTHER LIABILITIES

(in CZK thousands) 31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021
Unbilled deliveries 875 462
Liabilities to suppliers 0 155
Deferred tax liability 14,101 16,485
Other 110,184 75,629
Total 125,160 92,731

As at 31 December 2022, other liabilities include unbilled deliveries consisting of unbilled liabilities
to suppliers related to 2022 of CZK 875 thousand, a deferred tax liability of CZK 14,101 thousand,
and the ‘Other’ item mainly including liabilities to shareholders totaling CZK 110,184 thousand.

As at 31 December 2021, other liabilities include unbilled deliveries consisting of unbilled liabilities
to suppliers related to 2021 of CZK 462 thousand, liabilities to suppliers before due date of CZK 155
thousand, a deferred tax liability of CZK 16,485 thousand, and the ‘Other’ item mainly including
liabilities to shareholders totaling CZK 75,629 thousand.
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11. PROVISIONS

In 2022, a provision for a long-term bonus was recognized for the first time; the bonus shall be paid
to designated employees of the Fund at the end of the life of Subfund B, subject to the profitability
conditions set out in the Subfund B’s Statute and the contracts between the Fund and the designated
employees. As at 31 December 2022, the provision amounted to CZK 90,098 thousand.

12. INCOME TAX

31/12/2022 31/ 12/ 2021

Profit (loss) before taxes (99,636) (41,212)

Other non-deductible expenses (particularly investments carrying

costs, creation of provisions) 90,684 3,209
Non-taxable revenues - (178)
Tax base (8,951) (38,181)
Current income tax rate 5% 5%
Current income tax - -
Deferred tax asset 3,359 5,496
Income tax in the Income Statement 3,359 5,496

The Subfund B quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands):

Difference recorded

31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021 as at 31/ 12/ 2022
Against

Deferred tax items Deferred Deferrgd Deferred Def'errg'd profit or Agalpst

tax asset  tax liability tax asset tax liability  loss before equity

taxes

Revaluation of investments
in equity - (22,956) - (21,981) - (975)
Deferred tax from tax losses 4,350 - 5,496 - (1,146) -
Deferred tax from provisions 4,505 - - 4,505 -
Total 8,855 (22,956) 5,496 (21,981) 3,359 (975)
Total for the year (14,101) (16,485) - -

As at 31 December 2022, the deferred tax liability recognized in other liabilities totaled CZK (14,101)
thousand (of which CZK 4,350 thousand is the deferred tax asset arising from tax losses and the
revaluation of convertible loans recognized in profit or loss, CZK 4,505 thousand is the deferred tax
asset from provisions recognized in profit or loss, and CZK (22,956) thousand is the deferred tax
liability arising from revaluation of investments recognized through other comprehensive income —
Gain or loss on revaluation).

As at 31 December 2021, the deferred tax liability recognized in other liabilities totaled CZK (16,485)
thousand (of which CZK 5,496 thousand is the deferred tax asset arising from tax losses and the
revaluation of convertible loans recognized in profit or loss, and CZK (21,981) thousand is the
deferred tax liability arising from revaluation of investments recognized through other comprehensive
income — Gain or loss on revaluation).
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The difference in deferred tax from tax losses in 2022 compared to 2021 was CZK (1,146) thousand,
the difference, together with the deferred tax from provisions of CZK 4,505 thousand, was offset

against the caption 23 Income tax in the Income Statement, and thus totals CZK 3,359 thousand
as at 31 December 2022.

13. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

Subfund B had no employees in the Accounting Period. The fee expenses reported below relate to
fees determined on the basis of the Sub-fund’s Statute.

(in CZK thousands) 31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021
Management and other services 10,790 15,473
Administration 594 611
Audit 207 328
Depositary 323 329
Total 11,914 16,741

14. OTHER SIGNIFICANT INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ‘Interest income and similar income’ caption includes,

in particular, interest income of CZK 8,886 thousand and CZK 4,794 thousand, respectively arising
from convertible loans.

As at 31 December 2022, the Subfund recorded a loss from financial operations of CZK 6,510

thousand, comprising mainly the loss on remeasurement of convertible loans and foreign exchange
gains and losses.

As at 31 December 2021, the Subfund recorded a loss from financial operations of CZK 29,265

thousand, comprising mainly the loss on remeasurement of convertible loans and foreign exchange
gains and losses.

15. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION

The members of management, supervisory and administrative bodies of the Fund were granted no
advances, earnest money, loans, borrowings or guarantees in 2022 and they do not hold any
shares/interests of the Company. Other benefits consist of the use of company cars and phones
for private purposes.

16. ASSETS PROVIDED FOR MANAGEMENT

Balance as at:

31/ 12/ 2022 31/ 12/ 2021
Off-balance sheet assets - -
Assets provided for management 1,819,875 1,179,535
Total 1,819,875 1,179,535

Assets provided for management equal to equity and amounted to CZK 1,819,875 thousand and
CZK 1,179,535 thousand as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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17. CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS PER MEASUREMENT
CATEGORIES

The following table provides a reconciliation between balance sheet items and measurement
categories of financial instruments and other assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022. Financial
instruments for which the fair value has been determined by measurement are classified as FVTPL
and FVOCI. Other balance sheet items, the carrying amount of which is equal to the fair value, are
presented in Other Mandatory FVTPL.

Financial Instruments
Other

(In CZK thousands) FVO_C| Mandatory Total
FVTPL equity FVTPL
instruments

aD:Seoiric;?OE‘znks and cooperative savings ) ) 189 189
Shares, unit certificates and other participations - 1,943,452 - 1,943,452
Other assets (convertible loans) 91,492 - - 91,492
Total assets 91,492 1,943,452 189 2,035,133
Other liabilities - - 125,160 125,160
Provisions - - 90,098 90,098
Total equity and liabilities 0 0 215,258 215,258

18. FAIR VALUE

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments was as follows:

(in CZK thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Shares, unit certificates and other

participations - - 1,943,452 1,943,452
Other assets (convertible loans) - - 91,492 91,492
Total financial assets - - 2,034,944 2,034,944

The classification of financial instruments by fair value levels was revised as at 31 December 2022;
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Fund does not disclose the fair value classification for
financial instruments for which the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of their fair value
(IFRS 7, par. 29).

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments was as follows:

(in CZK thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Sha_rgs, u_n|t certificates and other ) ) 1,219,110 1219,110
participations

Other assets (convertible loans) - - 51,039 51,039
Total financial assets - - 1,270,149 1,270,149

19. RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of risk management is to protect and enhance the value of shareholders’
investment in the Sub-fund while maintaining risk exposure acceptable to shareholders.

The Sub-fund is exposed to risk factors, all of which are detailed in the Sub-fund’s Statute and in the
internal rules on Risk Management, Compliance with Limits and Liquidity Management. Risk
Management is independent of the portfolio management and informs the Board of Directors
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immediately of all facts increasing the risk taken. The function evaluates, measures, reduces and
reports individual risks. The main risks that the Fund may be exposed to include:

(a) market risk,

(b) concentration risk,
(c) liquidity risk,

(d) operational risk,
(e) credit risk,

(f) risk connected with investments in ownership interests in business
companies,

(9) risk associated with Sub-fund’s investment strategy,

(h) risk of counterparty default,

(i) outsourcing risk,

) risk associated with the sustainability factors.

The Fund identifies and evaluates the risks associated with each new and additional investment; the
transaction must be approved by the Board of Directors, the Risk management officer, the
Administrator's risk manager and the Compliance officer (recorded on the transaction card).
In addition, risks are managed when an investment is held in the form of quarterly risk reports on the
limit compliance; annual Risk Management Reports are submitted to the Fund’s Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board summarizing significant events, proposals for adjustments to the investment
strategy and the liquidity plan; Stress Tests and Investment Limit Reports from the Fund’s
Administrator form a part thereof.

Market risk

The risk that the value of an asset invested in by the Subfund B may rise or fall depending on changes
in overall market developments, macroeconomic conditions, interest rates, exchange rates and the
asset’'s perception by the market. The limits stipulated by the current full version of the Statute and
by the applicable legal regulations apply to all components of the market risk. Market risk is
thoroughly assessed by the Fund prior to the approval of any transaction. The Subfund is a fund of
qualified investors focused on specific investments in accordance with its investment objective, as
stated in the Sub-fund’s Statute, and therefore there is an increased risk of concentration and it is
not possible to reduce the risk through greater diversification. Market risk involves:

Currency risk

With respect to the fact that the Sub-fund’s investment shares are subscribed in EUR, the Sub-fund
is exposed to currency risk when making investments in currencies other than EUR. This may result
in fluctuations in the value of a security determined by the Administrator due to exchange rate
differences arising upon the valuation of the Sub-fund's assets.

The range of investments in different currencies is limited by the Statute; pursuant to the Statute,
the Sub-fund’s investments shall be made in EUR and other currencies of the EU Member States.
Sub-fund’s existing investments have so far only been made in EUR. As the current value of the
investment shares issued by Subfund is determined in EUR as well, the Sub-fund is not currently
exposed to currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Sub-fund is not exposed to significant interest rate risk; it does not hold funds in bank accounts
except for minimal liquidity. Cash is drawn on each investment individually from the shareholder. The
convertible loans granted usually have a fixed interest rate that does not change until maturity. The
interest rate may only change when a new tranche of the convertible loan is granted.

Concentration risk

The market risk is related to the concentration risk that is the risk of loss arising from a significant
concentration of exposures, particularly to a single person or a single group of related parties, or to
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a group of persons where the probability of their failure depends on a common risk factor, i.e. the
same economic sector or part thereof, geographical area, financial market section, type of assets or
the issuer of the investment instrument. The Sub-fund is exposed to the concentration risk due to its
investment strategy focusing on investments in new energy and related sectors and its focus on the
European Union market.

The table below shows the distribution of investments in the Subfund’s portfolio as per investment
industries as at 31 December 2022:

Portfolio percentage

Installation of thermal equipment 30%
Energy consumption optimization 29%
Logistics 24%
Other (Al) 17%
Total 100%

The Sub-fund has limited this risk through the limits applicable to individual securities and equal
shares in a group of related persons, see the limits in the Statute.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that certain asset of the Sub-fund will not be converted to cash quickly enough
at a reasonable price and that, as a result, the Sub-fund will be unable to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due, including the risk that the assets held by the Sub-fund cannot be sold or offset with
limited costs and within a reasonable time.

As at 31 December 2022, the Subfund has cash at bank totaling EUR 8 thousand; it records no
current liabilities from supplier business transactions. As at 31 December 2021, Subfund B had cash
at bank of EUR 85 thousand; it recorded no current liabilities from supplier business transactions.

The liquidity risk exposure is considered to be low as the Sub-fund draws its investment funds
individually from the shareholder, i.e. the European Investment Bank. Only minimum liquidity is held
in the bank account pursuant to the Sub-fund’'s Statute. The Sub-fund has no trade payables.
Liquidation preference has been agreed on the convertible loans granted, so that in the event of
liquidation or sale of the company, the Sub-fund will be compensated as a matter of priority.

The share of each financial asset and liability in the Sub-fund’s total assets and liabilities by maturity
is shown below:

Other

Financial assets Total items Total % of fin. assets/
financial . assets/ liabilities in total
. 0-3 3 months - } No without I L
(in CZK thousands) months 1 year 1-5 years maturity assets maturity liabilites ~ assets and liabilities
Amounts due from banks 189 - - - 189 - 189 0.01%
Shares and participations - - - 1,943,452 1,943,452 - 1,943,452 95.50%
o assets (convertible - - 91,492 - 91,492 - 91,492 4.50%
Total assets 189 0 91,492 1,943,452 2,035,133 0 2,035,133 100%
Other liabilities 875 - - - 875 124,285 125,160 0.04%
Provisions - - - - 0 90,098 90,098 -
Equity* - 1,819,875 - - 1,819,875 - 1,819,875 89.42%
Total liabilities 875 1,819,875 0 0 1,820,750 214,383 2,035,133 89.47%
Gap (686) (1,819,875) 91,492 1,943,452 214,383 (214,383)
Cumulative gap (686) (1,820,561) (1,729,069) 214,383 214,383 0
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* The equity maturity is indicated in 3 months - 1 year as according to Article 9.6 of the Subfund’s
Statute: “The Fund is obliged to redeem investment shares from the shareholder within one (1) year
from the date of receipt of the request for redemption of investment shares by the Fund
Administrator”.

Operational risk

The risk of aloss of assets resulting from inadequate or erroneous internal processes, failures
of operating systems or human factor, or external events.

The Fund has divided operational risk to four categories according to the source of risk:

a) process risks (incorrect execution of a transaction, exceeded limits, bookkeeping errors);

b) risk of human error (internal fraud, manual processing errors, errors in entries to information
systems);

¢) information system risks (HW, SW or telecommunications failure, unavailability of data,
security failure, missing valuation data);

d) external risks (external service provider default, including External suppliers, forces
of nature).

The operational risk assessment takes into account the functioning of the Fund’s internal and
external control system, which is evaluated by the Fund and by the internal auditor, who is
responsible for assessing individual operational risk manifestations and is involved in identifying
potential new operational risk manifestations. Operational risk is eliminated by strict adherence to
the four eyes rule, including random checks, employee training regarding limits, internal guidelines
and legal regulations, strict adherence to the archiving rules by the information system administrator,
thereby minimizing losses due to information system failure (part of the contract with the IS supplier),
control mechanisms preventing the use of client funds for proprietary trading. Reconciliation and
control of the movements of funds and investment instruments and compliance with the limits are
carried out in accordance with the applicable Internal Policy, thereby ensuring timely detection and
correction of errors. Concerning external control, operational risk is also eliminated by the activities
of the Fund’s depositary. The scope of control by the depositary is governed by the Depositary
Agreement.

Credit risk

The risk associated with possible failure by the Sub-fund’s counterparty to meet its obligations, i.e.
the risk that the issuer of an investment instrument held by Subfund B or a party to a contract (relating
to a particular investment) fails to meet its obligation, or that a debtor fails to repay, timely and fully,
the Sub-fund’s claim.

3 months - 1 year - More than

(in CZK thousands) 0-3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
Amounts due from banks 189 - - - 189
Convertible loans - - 91,492 - 91,492
Total assets 189 - 91,492 - 91,681
Change in interest-bearing assets > } 915 ) 017

when interest rate changes by 1%

The Sub-funds may accept and provide loans or borrowings under the terms laid down in the Statute.
As at 31 December 2022, the Sub-fund recorded no loans.

Risk connected with investments in ownership interests in business companies

According to the investment strategy set out in the Statute, Subfund B may acquire shares,
ownership interests, equity certificates, or any other legally permissible forms of participation
in corporations with share capital or similar types of companies in foreign jurisdictions (whether
regulated or unregulated) that meet the conditions set out in the Statute. Target companies may as
well be temporary special purpose vehicles established to acquire the above assets, and/or obtain
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bank or non-bank financing and risk diversification, including the possibility for Subfund B to carry
out a transformation process in which Subfund B and/or the Target Company will be participating
companies, in accordance with the relevant specific legislation.

According to the Statute, the minimum amount of a single investment from the Subfund’'s own
resources is EUR 1,000,000 at the time of its acquisition; the maximum investment from the Sub-
fund’s own resources at the time of its acquisition is EUR 10,000,000 per Target Company in the
sum of all investment rounds. The Sub-fund’s Statute sets out other investment limits as well.

Business companies in which the Sub-fund has a stake may be exposed to business risks.

As aresult, the market price of ownership interests in a business company may decrease or
completely lose value (the company may go bankrupt), or the interest may become unsaleable. This
risk is managed by careful selection of the target companies; each company is subject to a thorough
examination prior to any transaction (Term sheet, Deal Alert, ABAC report, financial, legal and/or
technical due diligence reports). In addition, liquidation preference is agreed in direct investments;
liquidation preference means that Subfund B will receive a preferred return in case the company is
liquidated (sold). Investments in target companies are made as co-investments of both Subfund A /
Subfund B in the companies in the EU, and with strong partners. In addition, the investors have their
members in supervisory bodies with direct access to company information on a monthly basis or any
time upon request. The Sub-fund also regularly monitors the portfolio companies.

Inherent risk associated with Sub-fund’s investment strategy

In view of the Sub-fund’s very specific investment strategy, there will always be a risk associated
with the very nature of the investment strategy aiming at investments in new industries and
progressive technologies through investments in Target Companies. Such risks include, but are not
limited to, e.g.:

a) the risk associated with the promoter of the investment being considered or with
the management team in the Target Company arising from e.g. possible lack of experience,
honesty, business instinct, or contacts, etc.;

b) the risk associated with the product resulting from e.g. insufficient commercialization of the
product, different requirements for prototype production and mass production, possible
reverse engineering of the new product, wrong estimate of the product’s benefits, product
price, etc.;

¢) technological risks arising from e.g. the possible existence of a better or more efficient
technology now or in the future, unpredictability of the development time and direction, non-
connectivity to existing systems, lack of material resources, etc.;

d) market risks related to the market environment, such as the market size, market potential,
competition, alternative products, unforeseen marketing costs, etc.;

e) financial risks, such as the absence of adequate capital resources/market at the moment
of future divestment, inappropriate level or structure of external financing, currency risks,
disagreement between co-financing investors, etc.;

f) operational risks associated with e.g. lack of qualified personnel, etc.;

g) environmental risks;

h) the above-mentioned political, regional, legal, regulatory and tax risks pertaining to
individual investments.

Through diversification, which is part of the risk management strategy exercised by the Fund,
possible impact of these risks on total assets of the Sub-fund can be reduced to a certain extent, but
the probability, form and frequency of occurrence of risks cannot be affected.

Settlement risk (Counterparty risk)

Settlement risk is the risk of a loss arising from a counterparty’s failure to meet its obligations before
the final settlement of the underlying transaction. Transactions with the Sub-fund’s assets may be
frustrated due to the counterparty’s inability to satisfy its liabilities and deliver the required asset or
make the required payment by the agreed deadline.

Settlement risk is assessed when a transaction is approved (ABAC report, Due diligence reports).
The risk that a counterparty may default in the settlement of transactions is mitigated by the use
of appropriate contractual instruments (e.g. escrow accounts).
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Counterparty risk is assessed as low. The Sub-fund has only a minimum balance in bank accounts
resulting from the requirement for minimum liquidity under the Sub-fund’s Statute. The account is
maintained at Komeréni banka a.s., which is aregulated entity under the supervision of CNB.
Liquidation preference is agreed on the convertible loans granted, so that in the event of liquidation
or sale of the company, priority payment has been guaranteed.

Outsourcing risk

Certain activities related to the management of the Fund are outsourced from a third party on the
basis of an outsourcing agreement pursuant to Clause 4 of the Fund’s Statute. The delegation of
certain tasks to another entity involves the risk that the Fund will not meet some of its obligations.
The Fund minimizes this risk by carefully selecting external service providers.

Accounting and tax services - WTS Alfery s.r.o. is a long-term provider of services to the CEZ Group.
Administrator — AMISTA investiéni spole€nost, a.s., is an entity subject to CNB regulation.
Risks associated with sustainability factors

The Fund analyses sustainability risks throughout the investment process, from pre-investment due
diligence through the holding period to exit. In 2022, a sustainability policy was developed, which is
stipulated in detail in the Inven ESG policy document (published on the Fund’s website under “Info
for investors”). The policy contains a detailed description of the investment analysis along with a list
of criteria that are analysed during the investment process. In addition to environmental and social
indicators, the emphasis is on the quality of corporate governance (composition and functioning of
the Board of Directors), GDPR and cybersecurity initiatives. With respect to investments in smaller,
fast-growing businesses, the company’s commitments and targets for sustainability goals are
considered and then prioritized and monitored on a regular basis.

20. GOING CONCERN

The Fund’s management will continue to monitor developments in the international economic and
security situation in the context of the conflict in Ukraine. One of the impacts of the conflict has been
the acceleration of certain trends such as the transition to sustainable energy sources, self-
sufficiency and diversification. These areas experience increased demand for new solutions, and for
many Target Companies, they represent an opportunity for faster growth and increasing their value.

The management of the Fund considered the potential impacts of the conflict on its activities and
business and concluded it did not have asignificant effect on the going concern
assumption. Accordingly, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
prepared on the assumption that the Company would be able to continue as a going concern.
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21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As of 1 January 2023, a new Subfund D was created with the European Investment Bank as
shareholder. It has a similar investment strategy to Subfund B and will co-invest EUR 100 million
with Subfund C in start-ups in the European Union. The four-year investment period of Subfund D
will be followed by a five-year divestment period.

Prepared on: 14 April 2023

Signature of entity’s statutory body:

Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s. Inven Capital, SICAV, a.s.
Ing. lvo Némejc Ing. Viktor MiSkovsky
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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